
AGENDA  

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

Wednesday, June 28, 2023 

Wayzata City Hall 

600 Rice Street, Wayzata, MN 55391 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Those attending the meeting, please complete the attendance sheet. Those desiring to participate in the 

meeting should complete the Public Comment Form at the meeting if the online Public Comment Form 

was not submitted. The Chair may choose to reorder the agenda for a specific agenda item if it would 

benefit the needs of those in attendance. Please see Public Comments Section for more information. 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 

6:00 p.m. 

The purpose of the Work Session is to allow staff to seek input from the Board and for the Board to discuss 

matters in greater detail than generally available at the formal Board Session. The Board may give staff 

direction or express a preference but does not formally vote on matters during Work Sessions. While all 

meetings of the Board are open to the public, Work Session discussions are generally limited to the Board, 

staff, and designated representatives. Work Sessions are not videotaped. The work session may be continued 

after the formal meeting, time permitting. 

6:00 Work Session to discuss: 

1. Watercraft for Hire Policy

2. Report from Board Retreat

FORMAL MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 p.m. 

The purpose of the Formal Session is to allow the Board to conduct public hearings and to consider and 

take formal action on matters coming before the LMCD. 

1) CALL TO ORDER

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3) ROLL CALL

4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5) CHAIR ANNOUNCEMENTS

6) APPROVAL OF MINUTES (06/14/2023 LMCD Regular Board Meeting)

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/LMCDSpeaker


LMCD Board Meeting 

June 28, 2023 

Page 2 

7) APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A) Audit of Vouchers (06/16/2023 – 06/31/2023)

B) Resolution Accepting Save the Lake Contributions (05/10/2023 – 06/09/2023)

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS – Provides an opportunity for the public to address the board on items 
that are not on the agenda. Public comments are limited to 5 minutes. Please direct all comments 
to the Board Chair. The Board generally will not engage in public discussion, respond to or 
correct statements from the public, or act on items not on the agenda. The Board may ask for 
clarifications or direct staff to report back on items at future meetings.

9) PRESENTATIONS

A) Bowfishing Tournament Presentation from Home Town Heroes Outdoors
B) Special Event Presentation from Project Got Your Back

10) PUBLIC HEARING

A) Variance for 135 Mound Ave

11) OTHER BUSINESS

12) OLD BUSINESS

13) NEW BUSINESS

A) Administrative Fines Cover Memo, Notice of Violation, and Draft Ordinance

B) Variance Fees, Escrow, Recording

14) TREASURER REPORT

A) May Balance Sheet and I and E Reports

15) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UPDATE

A) Summer Hours

B) Staff Compensation

C) Banking Update

D) Scanning Update

16) ADJOURNMENT



WS Item 1





























WWW.HUE.LIFE 

May 24th 2023 Board Meeting (Workshop) 
Facilitator: Dr. Irina Fursman  

Workshop Purpose & Objectives: 
• To review strategic plan and discuss committee structure
• Continue to develop high performing and cohesive board
• Provide clarity on the work of the Board and priorities

WS ITEM 2



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Board Meeting May 24th, 2023  

CURRENT STRATEGIC PLAN REVIEW  
Reviewing and reflecting on the current strategic plan, LMCD Board Members identified strategic initiatives that are no longer 
relevant, still relevant, existing barriers to accomplishing some initiatives, and added what is missing.  

Based on this review and following conversation, the current strategic plan is considered to be completed with an understanding 
that some initiatives are now SOPs (standard operating procedures) and need to be incorporated into the operational plans for the 
staff and the Board where appropriate.  

 

What barriers exist? 
- Staff and executive director roles, responsibilities, and

expectations
- Break away from “the way it has always been” – our past
- Disconnect between capabilities and abilities

What is missing? 
- Finance stability long term: 10-20+ years (discussion led

to acknowledging that the financial stability question is
directly tied to the nature of the agency and the way it is
funded through taxes)

- ID top 3 LMCD priorities
- Staff strategy /structure aligned with LMCD priorities
- Added efficiency in Board work (fewer meetings, fewer

committees, respect for board members’ time)
- Mutual respect



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Board Meeting May 24th, 2023  

 
 
Strategic Priority:  What is no longer relevant? 

(Completed or proven to be  
ineffective)  

Becoming SOP  
(Standard Operating Procedure)  

Still Relevant  
(Needs more conversation)   

I. Finance  b) finalize and maintain a capital 
equipment plan;  
e) assess legal fees and use of 
attorney;  
 

a) explore investment fund options 
c) create new funding sources 
analysis  
 
 
 

d) review LMCD fee structure 
f) fund reserves of 30% to 50%   
(target 35% and distribute access  
over 5 years)  

II. Communications  c) continue to refine feedback 
mechanisms for stakeholder and 
partner initiatives. 
 

a) identify and utilize most effective  
outlets to convey public information  
about safety, rules, and best  
practices (differentiate roles of staff  
and board; Board Chair to be the 
spokesperson);  
b) continue to develop relationships 
 with and regularly update cities,  
legislators, agencies, and others  
regarding LMCD activities (needs 
improvement and board effort); 

d) Communications committee to set 
priorities and develop recommendation to 
Board for annual budget (i.e. 
Communication Plan)  

III. Operations,  
Governance, and  
Regulation  
 

c) continue annual Board self-
evaluation process; d) review 
opportunities for continued officer 
and board member engagement in 
LMCD initiatives and committees  
 
  
 
 
 

e) Update wake, high water and  
quiet water area policies (change  
from “update” to “declare”); 
f) analyze competing lake uses, 
impacts and lake management  
options (review policies as needed, 
code and policies update)  
  
All Staff Role items are tasks not  
strategic initiatives and should be 
incorporated into staff’s work plans 

a) Develop succession plan for  
LMCD Executive Leadership  
b) develop training plan for Board  
regarding standards, process, 
inclusion, and diversity, etc.  
(Establish a methodology to deliver 
 Board Training /Onboarding) 
 

 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Board Meeting May 24th, 2023  

 
Strategic Priority:  What is no longer relevant? 

(completed or proven to be 
ineffective)  

Becoming SOP  
(Standard Operating Procedure)  

Still Relevant or Needs More Conversation  

IV. Lake Protection &  
AIS   

a) Close out master plan and  
roll into a board approved  
adopted AIS strategy;  
b) Explore grants/other funding  
opportunities (e.g., state, 
federal, local, institution, fees, 
etc.) 
c) Finance $80,000 funded 
from reserves for 2022  
 

 
 

d) Support new ongoing funding mechanisms 
for AIS treatment and  
prevention (Funding Strategy)  
 
Continue Start Ups  
 

V. Save The Lake  
 

c) Provide for expanded 
boater education (youth) 
through online curriculum  

 a) Fund Hennepin County Sheriff  
Office Water Patrol officers as requested  
and validated  
b) Develop and improved fundraising 
strategy and protocol  
 
= > Change to Fund Safety Program  
 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Board Meeting May 24th, 2023  

 
COMMITTEE STRUCTURE & BOARD PRIORITIES  
Committee structure discussion resulted in elimination of Operations, Governance, and Regulation Committee with the 
Officers of the Board taking responsibility to establish a workshop model (replace one regular meeting a month with the 
workshop).   
 
The remaining committees established the following priorities:  
 
Finance: Fund reserves to target 35% of reserves to budget expenses via the budget and shoot for a 5 year target  
Communications: Develop a communications plan (calendar of tasks, updated periodically)  
Lake Protection & AIS: Allow citizens to org; Continue supporting SH efforts  
Save The Lake: Maintain viability of private and public funding for lake safety  
 
What is our lane?  
Based on the review of the strategic plan, reflections on the work completed and LMCD’s twelve (12) primary /mandatory 
responsibilities, the Board identified REGULATE ACTIVITIES ON THE LAKE as their primary purpose and charge for 
which they are held accountable. The two main lanes that most activities should fall into are PLANNING & ZONING and 
SAFETY OF THE LAKE. 
 
 
 
  



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Board Meeting May 24th, 2023  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Next Steps:  

1) Sunset the Operations, Gov & Reg Committee  
2) Establish workshop format for one of the monthly meetings  
3) Review and update Executive Director job description & qualifications /skills desired  
4) Align staff roles and responsibilities with the two primary lanes and establish report /updates system for 

accountability  
5) Develop Communications Plan with external stakeholders 

 
 



LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
7:00 P.M., June 14, 2023 

Wayzata City Hall 

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Hoelscher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Members present: Ann Hoelscher, Victoria; Rich Anderson, Orono; Mike Kirkwood, Minnetrista; Bill Cook,
Greenwood; Ben Brandt, Mound; Dennis Klohs, Minnetonka Beach; Mark Kroll, Excelsior; Ryan Nellis, Tonka
Bay; Nicole Stone, Minnetonka; and Deborah Zorn, Shorewood. Also present: Joe Langel, LMCD Legal
Counsel; Thomas Tully, Environmental Administrative Technician; and Maisyn Reardan, Administrative
Coordinator, Raina Arntson, Seasonal Assistant.

Members absent:   Dan Baasen, Wayzata; Gabriel Jabbour, Spring Park; Denny Newell, Woodland; and
Jake Walesch, Deephaven.

Persons in Audience: Eric Evenson, Major Shane Magnuson, Sgt. Rick Waldon, Dan Gustafson, and James
Ronning.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION: Cook moved, Kroll seconded to approve the agenda as submitted.

VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

5. CHAIR ANNOUNCEMENTS

A) Raina Arntson Introduction

Chair Hoelscher introduced Raina Arntson, the newest LMCD employee, and welcomed her.  

B) Update on Implementation of 300 Foot Rule

Hoelscher invited a member of Water Patrol to provide an update on the implementation of the new 300-foot 
rule. 

Sargent Rick Waldon commented that they have fielded many questions and complaints this year on this 
topic.  He stated that there have been two citations on personal watercraft with 16 verbal warnings, and 24 
verbal warnings and no citations for regular watercraft.  He commented that they are stopping people for this 
issue. 

ITEM 6



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
June 14, 2023                                                Page 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Anderson commented that he was on the lake today and asked why the channel buoys are not 300 feet out 
as a visual.  He stated that would be a great visual for users.   
 
Waldon agreed and noted that could be a great discussion for next year as he was unsure it could be 
implemented this year.  He commented that many residents want to put their own 300-foot buoys out and they 
are being referred to the permit process.   
 
Kirkwood asked if the LMCD should do more on public education. 
 
Waldon replied that this is something new and people are creatures of habit.  He believed the word is out and 
there will just need to be more repeated behavior and reminders from Water Patrol. 
 
Stone asked if most people stopped are aware of the rule. 
 
Waldmon stated that the majority of people were aware and either did not realize or had forgotten.  He noted 
that it takes time for new rules to be learned.   
 
Anderson asked the number of citations for BWIs.  He noted that the Water Patrol presence on the lake has 
been outstanding. 
 
Waldon replied that they are up 31 percent from last year with seven BWI arrests, 64 citations, 13 written 
warnings, and 346 verbal warnings.  He stated that there are a lot of new people being trained in therefore 
they are fully staffed and get boats out every day. 
 
Klohs asked if there has been feedback from landowners.  He asked if the behavior on the lake feels different 
because of the 300-foot rule. 
 
Waldon replied that he is unsure that it has had an impact on behavior.  He stated that lakeshore owners are 
calling in violations.   
 
Kroll commented that he has seen jumpers on Arcola bridge and asked if they should be called in. 
 
Waldon replied that there are jumpers daily and they do not mind the calls.   
 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES- 05/24/2023 LMCD Regular Board Meeting 
 
MOTION: Brandt moved, Stone seconded to approve the 05/24/2023 LMCD Regular Board Meeting 

minutes as submitted. 
 

VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. 
 
7. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

    



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
June 14, 2023                                                Page 3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MOTION: Cook moved, Zorn seconded to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Items approved 
included: 7A) Audit of Vouchers (06/01/2023 – 06/15/2023); 7B) Resolution Disbanding Standing 
Committees; and 7C) Renewal of Amendments to Office Lease Agreement. 

 
VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. 

 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS- Persons in attendance, subjects not on the agenda (limited to 5 minutes) 
 
 There were no public comments. 

 
9.    PRESENTATIONS 
 
       There were no presentations. 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
There were no public hearings. 

 
11. OTHER BUSINESS   

 
There was no other business. 

 
12. OLD BUSINESS 

 
A) Modifications/Update to 9-1.01 – Observer Rule 
 
Hoelscher noted that this item is to consider potential updates or changes to the observer rule, noting that the 
observer rule for Lake Minnetonka is different than other lakes in the state. 
 
James Ronning, 740 Tonkawood Road, stated that they last spoke about this during August of 2020 via Zoom.  
He stated that Minnesota law allows for a wide-angle mirror in lieu of an observer whereas Lake Minnetonka 
requires an observer in the boat regardless of whether there is a wide-angle mirror.  He stated that White Bear 
Lake would most likely be most comparable to Lake Minnetonka and allows the wide-angle mirror in lieu of an 
observer before Memorial Day, after Labor Day, or before 4 p.m. on weekdays or before noon on Saturdays 
and Sundays.  He recognized that there is traffic on Lake Minnetonka that would dictate the need for an 
observer but there are times when that would not be necessary, as recognized by White Bear Lake.  He stated 
that he set up a time lapse camera on Stubs Bay during 4th of July weekend in 2021 to record the amount of 
boat traffic.   
 
Hoelscher stated that the current ordinance refers to water skiing and towing and therefore they should most 
likely update that portion of the ordinance, whether or not the times are adjusted. 
 
Ronning played the time lapse video of the bay showing very little traffic on the bay on that Thursday and 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
June 14, 2023                                                Page 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

showing little traffic in the mornings with traffic picking up in the afternoons/evenings of that weekend.   
 
Anderson commented that he would not see a need to differentiate before Memorial Day/after Labor Day.   
 
Ronning stated that he would propose an observer be required on holidays, Saturdays and Sundays after 10 
a.m. until 30 minutes after sunset; and Monday through Friday noon through 30 minutes after sunset.  He 
stated that prior to the Memorial Day weekend and after Labor Day weekend he would propose an observer 
be required noon to 30 minutes after sunset; and Monday through Friday 2 p.m. to 30 minutes after sunset. 
 
Anderson stated that in his opinion the marina is jumping on May 15th and therefore does not see Memorial 
Day and Labor Day causing a start or end with traffic. 
 
Ronning agreed that the lake is busier on the first nice days after people have been cooped up all winter.   
 
Stone commented that she does not oppose this.  She stated that there should be some commonsense 
language as there is a boat parade on the 4th of July on Grays Bay and boats start lining up at 8:30 a.m.   
 
Kroll commented that they have talked about this over the past year to 18 months.  He believed that adoption 
of the White Bear Lake rule would be appropriate and noted that in reference to Stone’s comments, people will 
most likely avoid a bay with 35 boats lined up.   
 
MOTION: Kroll moved, Anderson seconded to direct staff and legal counsel to prepare a Code amendment 

to state that an observer is required in the boat Saturdays, Sundays and holidays from 10 a.m. to 
30 minutes past sunset; and Monday through Friday from noon until 30 minutes past sunset. 

 
Further discussion: Kirkwood asked if this would extend to families towing kids on inflatables. 
 
Anderson stated that if there are too many distinctions, people will become confused, therefore the rule should 
apply to all.   
 
Kroll stated that he would be open to amending the motion to state that this applies to situations where towed 
individuals are above a certain age. 
 
Hoelscher stated that she would not use towed individuals as wake surfers are not towed.   
 
Brandt read language used in statute.   
 
Hoelscher suggested that language be mimicked.  She stated that legal counsel could take the input tonight to 
bring forward an amendment that would include the times in the motion and the description of those 
participating in water activities based on the State statute. 
 
Kroll confirmed that he and Anderson supported the additional language as described by Hoelscher. 
 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
June 14, 2023                                                Page 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE: Motion carried 9 - 1 (Cook opposed). 
 
Langel noted that vote was for the amendment and now the vote would be for the motion. 
 
Brandt noted that the wide-angle mirror would be needed in lieu of the observer. 
 
Kroll confirmed that would be the direction for staff. 
 
VOTE: Motion carried 9 - 1 (Cook opposed). 

 
13. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A) AIS Treatment Funding Request for Browns Bay, Phelps Bay, and Black Lake 
 
Brandt commented that there have been applications brought forward for treatment in Browns Bay, Phelps 
Bay and Black Lake.  He stated that he has reviewed the applications which were submitted on behalf of the 
bays by Eric Evenson. 
 
Eric Evenson, Director of Lake Minnetonka Association (LMA), presented the request for EWM treatment in 
Browns Bay, whole lake treatment of Black Lake, and pilot treatment of Phelps Bay and provided an overview 
of those requests.    He provided details on those that would be involved including the contractors, 
project/fiscal manager, and noted that the grant funds will only be used for treatments noting that plant 
surveys, in-kind and administrative costs are not included in the request.  All plant survey and other data 
obtained will be shared with the LMCD and the LMCD would be listed as a partner in the project.   
 
Kirkwood asked for details on the treatment area within one of the bays. 
 
Evenson provided details on the proposed area of treatment.  He noted that everything would be treated in 
Black Lake, with the exception of the cattail area.  He confirmed that the DNR is supportive of the treatments 
and is very interested in the pilot project as that entity is also interested in potential application of that product. 
 
Klohs asked if each lakefront owner is contacted for response. 
 
Evenson replied that there is a published notice required and treatment buoys are placed.  He noted that LMA 
has applied on behalf of the bays, with Bay Captains reaching out to the residents to raise the required 
matching funds.   
 
Klohs asked what would happen if a lakeshore owner objected. 
 
Evenson commented that there is a waiver that could be filled out if a homeowner did not want treatment, 
noting that has only happened once in his experience and that area in front of that property is left out. 
 
Anderson shared his experience raising funds for treatment in his bay.   



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
June 14, 2023                                                Page 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Evenson also shared his experience.  He noted that it is often easier to raise funds for the initial treatment, as 
people sometimes do not see the need for ongoing maintenance, or the homes have turned over in ownership 
and those people have only seen the nicer conditions.   
 
Klohs commented that the transition to this program has been successful and was wondering about the input 
from the residents as he recalled situations where people were against chemical treatment.  
 
Evenson stated that he does not receive that type of pushback and noted that they are very transparent about 
the process and treatment.   
 
Brandt referenced Phelps Bay and asked if the green dots on the map are the treatment areas. 
 
Evenson confirmed that the dots circled in yellow are the proposed treatment areas. 
 
Brandt stated that typically they cover 25 percent of the treatment cost and asked for clarification on the request. 
 
Evenson stated that for Phelps Bay they would not be asking for funding if they were using the typical 
chemical and are therefore asking for assistance covering the difference in the cost between the chemicals as 
they are hoping to see longer term benefits with this chemical.   
 
Anderson stated that he would recommend funding that in the typical manner of 25 percent with the Bay 
Captains left to raise the remaining funds. 
 
Cook stated that he would prefer to include the higher amount requested for Phelps Bay. 
 
Anderson stated that he would prefer to apply the program consistently funding 25 percent.  

 
MOTION: Anderson moved, Brandt seconded to authorize funding for the treatment of EWM and CLP in 
Black Lake, Browns Bay, and Phelps Bay in the amount of $14,423.08 and authorize LMCD staff, Anderson, 
and Brandt to make payment upon verification and completion of the project. 
 
VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. (Zorn abstained) 

 
14. TREASURER REPORT 
 

Anderson had no report.    
  
15. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UPDATE 

 
A) Boater Safety Education Program Volunteers 
 



Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 
June 14, 2023                                                Page 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reardan stated that the Boater Safety educational program will be held on Tuesday June 20th, and they are 
looking for Board volunteers to assist.   
 
Hoelscher advised available Board members to contact staff if they can assist. 

 
B) LMCD Boat at City of Tonka Bay Marina 
 
Hoelscher stated that information was provided in the packet giving an update on this topic. 
 
Tully stated that Tonka Bay did offer the Board an option to store the boat in that location and noted that a 
memorandum was provided by Brimeyer. 
 
Nellis stated that he spoke with the City Administrator, and he made the connection and there is a formal 
consideration process to ensure everything is done appropriately.   
 
Anderson asked if a lift would be allowed.  He stated that he could rent a lift to the LMCD for $1 per year. 
 
Nellis commented that while the City was favorable, he was unsure that there was space. 
 
Hoelscher stated that it seems that there was space, and the details are being worked out. 
 
C) Workshop Protocol  
 
Hoelscher stated that the Board Officers met with Brimeyer last week to discuss the protocol for the new 
workshop format, which was provided in the packet.  She noted that the first workshop will be held on the 28 th 
at 6 p.m.  She summarized some of the items that will potentially be discussed.   

 
16.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: Kirkwood moved, Stone seconded to adjourn the meeting at 7:59 p.m.   

 
VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

 ___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 Ann Hoelscher, Chair     Michael Kirkwood, Secretary 



ITEM 7A





RESOLUTION 254 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING CONTRIBUTION(S) TO THE LAKE MINNETONKA 

CONSERVATION DISTRICT (LMCD) 

WHEREAS, the LMCD is a regional government agency established by Minnesota 

Statutes Section 103B.605, Subd. 1; and 

WHEREAS, contributions to the LMCD "Save the Lake" fund are generally tax 

deductible to individuals under the IRS Code 26 USC Section 170 (b)(1)(a) because 

contributions to any political subdivision of any state for exclusively public purposes are 

deductible; and 

WHEREAS, municipalities are generally authorized to accept donations of real and 

personal property pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its 

stakeholders, and is specifically authorized to accept gifts; and 

WHEREAS, LMCD wishes to follow similar requirements as established for 

municipalities for accepting donations; and 

WHEREAS, the attached listed person(s) and entity(ies) have offered to contribute the 

cash amount(s) set forth with any terms or conditions as outlined in Attachment I to the LMCD; 

and 

WHEREAS, such contribution(s) have been contributed to the LMCD for the benefit of 

the public, as allowed by law; and 

WHEREAS, the LMCD Board of Directors finds that it is appropriate to accept 

the contribution(s) offered. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LMCD BOARD, STATE OF 

MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The contribution(s) described with Attachment I is/are accepted and shall be used to

establish and/or operate services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed

by law.

ITEM 7B



RESOLUTION #254 

Page 2 

 

2. The executive director is hereby directed to issue receipt(s) acknowledging the LMCD’s 

receipt of the contributor’s contribution(s). 
 

Adopted by the Board this 28th day of June 2023. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ann Hoelscher, Chair 

 

________________________________ 

Michael Kirkwood, Secretary 



 9:43 AM

 06/13/23

 Accrual Basis

 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District

 Transaction Detail By Account
 January 1 through June 9, 2023

Date Num Name Memo Amount

Contributions

3001M20 · Donations (General) -  S/L

05/10/2023 PayPal Kerry Skelton Transfer from PayPal (1000.00) 970.61

05/10/2023 PayPal Katherine Paulson Transfer from PayPal (100.00) 96.62

05/10/2023 PayPal Ellen Peterson Transfer from PayPal (200.00) 193.73

05/10/2023 PayPal Thomas Whisler Transfer from PayPal (50.00) 48.06

05/10/2023 10539 John Dawz STL Donation (General) 100.00

05/10/2023 550473 Mark & Lori Kroll Fund STL Donation (General) 3,000.00

05/10/2023 8407745 Tom & Susan Enlow STL Donation (General) 250.00

05/10/2023 3303 William Nunn STL Donation (General) 100.00

05/10/2023 2481 Kirt & Niclole Woodhouse STL Donation (General) 1,000.00

05/10/2023 1103 Dean & Doris Akins STL Donation (General) 500.00

05/10/2023 12063 Chris & Patty Conroy STL Donation (General) 500.00

05/10/2023 23582 (OPT OUT) STL Donation (General) 50.00

05/10/2023 Paypal Elias Yazbek Transfer from Paypal (100.00) 96.62

05/10/2023 Paypal Elaine Haydock Transfer from Paypal (250.00) 242.28

05/10/2023 Paypal Darryl C. Landstrom Transfer from Paypal (500.00) 485.06

05/10/2023 Paypal Christine Grootwassink Transfer from Paypal (100.00) 96.62

05/17/2023 Paypal Ben Bergum Transfer from PayPal (200.00) 193.73

05/17/2023 Paypal Amy Adlington Trasfer from PayPal (200.00) 193.73

06/09/2023 6135 Tom Brossard STL Donation (General) 100.00

06/09/2023 5851 (OPT OUT) STL Donation (General) 100.00

06/09/2023 10532 Allen J. Scheffers STL Donation (General) 250.00

06/09/2023 16409 Bonnie Engler STL Donations (General) 150.00

8,717.06

3004M20 · Donations (Solar Light) - S/L Total 3004M20 - Donations (Solar Lights) - S/L 410.57

05/10/2023 067980 Lake Minnetonka Charter Boat Assoc., Inc.

Total 3001M20 · Donations (General) -  S/L 9,127.63

Resolution #254 - Save the Lake Contributions

 Page 1 of 1

ITEM 7B1



ITEM 9A



ITEM 9B



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

DATE: June 28, 2023 (Prepared June 22, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Thomas Tully, Environmental Administrative Technician 

CC: Jim Brimeyer,  Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Variance for Adjusted Dock Use Area and Side Setback, 135 Mound Avenue, 

Tonka Bay 

ACTION_____________________________________________________________________ 

Board consideration of a variance for an adjusted dock use area including side setbacks for 135 

Mound Avenue on Gideon Bay in the City of Tonka Bay (PID 28-117-23-43-0054) and receive 

public input during the public hearing.  

The following motions are offered depending on whether the Board wishes to approve or deny 

the request: 

Approval 

I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and Order 

approving the variance application from Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra Franta for the 

property located at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay for final approval at the July 12, 

2023 LMCD Board meeting <subject to the following conditions>…  

Denial 

I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and Order 

denying the variance application from Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra Franta for the 

property located at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay for a final vote at the July 12, 2023, 

LMCD Board meeting based on…  

APPLICATION SUMMARY____________________________________________________ 

The applicant, Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra Franta, (“Applicant”) has submitted an application 

for a variance to adjust the dock use area including side setbacks for 135 Mound Ave in Tonka 

Bay; (“Site”). The Applicant’s parcel has approximately 38 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline. 

The request includes sharing of the shoreline and dock use area of the adjacent City of Tonka 

Bay fire lane. The variance application was submitted in an effort to resolve concerns over the 

years between the Applicant and City of Tonka Bay. 

ITEM 10A



Application for Variance at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay 

LMCD Board Meeting June 28, 2023 

Page 2 

2 

Site Background 

A public hearing for the applicant’s proposals was originally held on October 26, 2022 and was 

brought back for final approval at a LMCD Board meeting on November 9, 2022. 

A new application for the property located at 135 Mound Ave was submitted to the LMCD on 

April 26, 2023. The Applicant has requested an amendment to the original Findings of Facts, this 

would result in a new Variance being issued. The Applicant has concerns with the current 

language found in the Findings of Fact. Below I have included the current wording found in the 

Findings of Fact (Order 6 (g)), as well as the Applicants requested change. 

Current Wording: “If the City ever elects to more fully exercise its riparian rights associated 

with the fire lane and withdraws its consent because it determines the Applicant’ dock interferes 

with its proposed use, the Applicant will be required to yield to the superior riparian rights held 

by the public in the authorized dock use area of the fire lane. McLafferty v. St. Aubin, 500 

N.W.2d 165, 168 (Minn. App. 1993). If consent is ever withdrawn, the Applicant, or any future 

owner, is encouraged to work with the City to identify a solution that will work for both parties 

and to submit an application seeking whatever approvals from the LMCD that may be required 

to facilitate the agreed upon plan”. 

Applicants Request: “If the City ever elects to more fully exercise its riparian rights associated 

with the fire lane and withdraws its consent (because it determines the Applicant’ dock may 

interferes with its proposed riparian uses), the Applicant may be required to modify his dock 

configuration to reasonably share riparian rights in accordance with Minnesota riparian rights 

laws and court decisions as they exists at the time of such exercise by the City. If consent is ever 

withdrawn, the Applicant or any future property owner is encouraged to work with the City to 

identify a solution that will work for both parties and to submit an application seeking whatever 

approvals from the LMCD that may be required to facilitate the agreed upon plan.” 

Please reference the attached Board Memo for the original public hearing (Dated October 26, 

2022), and attached Findings of Fact for a full background regarding the proposed Variance. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS_________________________________________________________ 

In compliance with MN DNR General Permit 97-6098, the MN DNR, MCWD, and the City of 

Tonka Bay were provided information regarding the application on June 16, 2023. City and 

agency comments were due by June 26, 2023. Comments received as of June 22, 2023, are 

summarized below. Any comments received after June 22, 2023, will be provided at the Board 

meeting for review.  

• There have been no agency comments regarding the application.



Application for Variance at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay 

LMCD Board Meeting June 28, 2023 

Page 3 

3 

As of June 22, 2023 comments received by LMCD staff from the general public are summarized 

below:  

• The LMCD Office has received no general public comments regarding the application.

PUBLIC HEARING____________________________________________________________ 

The public hearing provides an opportunity for interested individuals to present their views to the 

Board for consideration. This is an important part of reviewing the impact of a project. Only 

items under the LMCD Code and Board authority may be considered as part of any approval or 

denial decision.  

The public hearing notice was published in the June 8, 2023, edition of the Sun Sailor (official 

newspaper) and the June 11, 2022, edition of the Laker Pioneer. On June 15, 2022, a public 

hearing notice was mailed to persons who reside upon or are owners of property within 350 feet 

of the Site. In addition, the Board packet was posted online and the agenda was posted on the 

LMCD bulletin board.  

RECOMMENDATION_________________________________________________________ 

The Staffs approach has been to work with both the Applicant and the City of Tonka Bay to find 

a favorable solution to an ongoing problem regarding responsible sharing of a City of Tonka Bay 

Fire Lane. The City of Tonka Bay, through resolution 22-38 formally supported the original 

proposed Variance sharing the City of Tonka Bay Fire Lane. LMCD Staff and Legal Council at 

the time of the approval of original Variance noted the superior riparian rights held by the public, 

and the Applicants need to submit to such if ever it was determined that the dock structure at 135 

Mound Ave interfered with the Fire Lanes proposed use. Therefore, LMCD staff recommends 

that the Board deny the proposed Variance due to the nature of which the City of Tonka Bay Fire 

Lane is meant to serve. 

BUDGET_____________________________________________________________________ 

N/A 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES_____________________________________________________ 

Operational 

Effectiveness 

Clear & Timely 

Communications 

Effective 

Governance 
X 

Lake 

Protection 
Other 

ATTACHMENTS______________________________________________________________ 

1. Original LMCD Board Memo (October 26, 2022)

2. Approved Findings of Fact (November 9, 2022)

3. Aerial Imagery of Site

4. Current Approved Site Plans

5. Variance Application & Submitted Documents

6. Public Hearing Notice (Sun Sailor and Laker Pioneer)

7. Public Hearing Notice Mailing

8. City of Tonka Bay Resolution 22-38



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

DATE: October 26, 2022 (Prepared October 21, 2022) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Thomas Tully, Environmental Administrative Technician 

CC: Vickie Schleuning, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Variance for Adjusted Dock Use Area and Side Setback, 135 Mound Avenue, 

Tonka Bay 

ACTION_____________________________________________________________________ 

Board consideration of a variance for an adjusted dock use area including side setbacks for 135 

Mound Avenue on Gideon Bay in the City of Tonka Bay (PID 28-117-23-43-0054) and receive 

public input during the public hearing.  

The following motions are offered depending on whether the Board wishes to approve or deny 

the request: 

Approval 

I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and Order 

approving the variance application from Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra Franta for the 

property located at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay for final approval at the November 

9, 2022, LMCD Board meeting <subject to the following conditions>…  

Denial 

I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and Order 

denying the variance application from Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra Franta for the 

property located at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay for a final vote at the November 9, 

2022, LMCD Board meeting based on…  

APPLICATION SUMMARY____________________________________________________ 

The applicant, Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra Franta, (“Applicant”) has submitted an application 

for a variance to adjust the dock use area including side setbacks for 135 Mound Ave in Tonka 

Bay; (“Site”). The Applicant’s parcel has approximately 38 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline. 

The request includes sharing of the shoreline and dock use area of the adjacent City of Tonka 

Bay fire lane. The variance application was submitted in an effort to resolve concerns over the 

years between the Applicant and City of Tonka Bay. 

Site Background 

The Applicants current dock does not meet the standard LMCD Code requirements. A dock has 

existed at this location for many years, with some reconfiguration. The Applicant’s parcel has 

Original Approved Submittal ITEM 10A



Application for Variance at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay 

LMCD Board Meeting October 26, 2022 

Page 2 

2 

approximately 38 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline with lot lines that converge. The adjacent 

fire lane to the north has 58 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline. This variance would allow for 

sharing the shoreline between both sites for consideration of the proposed dock structure at 135 

Mound Avenue, while maintaining the current public access to the lake from the fire lane. This 

fire lane shoreline measurement is not used as part of the calculation for boat density for the City 

of Tonka Bay municipal dock license. 

The Applicant site has 38 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline. The length of the dock is 78 feet, 

the total width of the dock structure is 33.2 feet, and two Boat Storage Units (BSUs) are 

proposed. The LMCD Code allows properties that were in existence on or before February 2, 

1970 with a shoreline less than 40 feet to extend dock structure out to four (4) feet of water depth 

or a maximum of 60 feet into the lake, whatever is achieved first. The LMCD Code also allows a 

5 foot side setback without a canopy. However, for purposes of the review, the code analysis will 

be based on the option to share the City of Tonka Bay fire lane with a shoreline measurement up 

to 96 feet. 

After meeting with the Applicant and City representatives, the Applicant wishes for the Board to 

consider the original submittal that is attached and an additional option.  The applicant is 

requesting that:  

1. the current dock structure be allowed to remain in its current placement as indicated on

the submitted site plan, or

2. to reduce the width of the dock by two (2) feet in order to install a canopy instead of the

current lift to better accommodate the watercraft onsite.

Additionally, the water depths shown on the site plan for 135 Mound Ave were not based off the 

929.4 feet OHW. The water depths shown on the site plan were provided by the Applicant on 

August 1, 2022, and were not verified by the surveyor. LMCD staff visited the property on 

October 4, 2022, and verified that water depths based on the 929.4 feet OHW contour would 

have been marked at approximately 6.2 feet at the end of the dock, and 4.6 feet at the start of 

BSU #1. This variance application is not based on water depth, noting that lake water levels were 

below normal this boating season.   

Proposed Setbacks 

Original Submittal 

The original proposal as indicated on the submitted site plan includes a side setback of 10.1 feet 

to 10.8 feet shore to lakeward on the southern side.  This variance proposal would require a 15 

foot setback for a dock length beyond 50 feet from the 929.4 ft OHW and a 20- foot setback for a 

canopy. With the incorporation and use of the city fire lane, the setback on the northern side 

would be 43.8 feet to 29.5 feet extending from BSU 2 and from platform, respectively. The 

platform is 7 feet wide by 12 feet excluding the walkway.  

Option 

The Applicant’s proposed option would include a setback of 12.1 feet to 12.8 feet, as measured 

from BSU 1 as it extends into the lake on the southern side of the site. This variance proposal 

would require a 15 foot setback for a dock length beyond 50 feet from the 929.4 ft OHW and a 

20-foot setback for a canopy.



Application for Variance at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay 

LMCD Board Meeting October 26, 2022 

Page 3 

3 

This reduction in width of the dock structure was proposed to allow for the use of a canopy in 

place of the current boat lift installed at 135 Mound Ave. However even with this change the side 

setbacks for both a canopy and dock structure would still not meet LMCD requirements. The 

north side setback is the same as the original submittal.  

Proposed Dock Length 

For the original submittal and option requested, the Applicant’s current dock structure on the site 

is approximately 78 feet long. In consideration of a shoreline measurement up to 96 feet, the 

LMCD Code allows the dock length up to the shoreline measurement, but not to exceed 100 feet 

if no safety, navigation, or other negative impacts would occur.  

Proposed BSUs 
Original Submittal 

The applicant proposes one boat storage unit (BSU) with a canopy to replace the current boat lift that 

currently is in place, and one BSU with a boat lift for a second watercraft. The enclosed BSU would 

measure 14.2 feet wide by 40 feet long. The second BSU measures 8.25 feet wide by 17 feet long 

and is located along the north side of the dock structure. 

Option 

The applicant proposes one boat storage unit (BSU) with a canopy to replace the current boat lift that 

currently is in place, and one BSU with a boat lift for a second watercraft. The enclosed BSU would 

measure 12.2 feet wide by 40 feet long. The second BSU measures 8.25 feet wide by 17 feet long 

and is located along the north side of the dock structure.  

CONSIDERATIONS OF VARIANCE_____________________________________________ 

The following items should be considered when reviewing a variance request: 

1. Has the Applicant sufficiently demonstrated practical difficulties exist such that each of

following are true?

a. Strict application of code prohibits property owner from using Lake in reasonable

manner that is otherwise permitted by the code.

b. Granting a variance is within spirit and intent of the Code.

c. Plight of property owner is due to circumstances:

(1) Unique to property;

(2) Not created by property owner; and

(3) Not based solely on economic considerations.

d. Granting a variance does not alter essential character of the area.

2. Is the Applicant proposing a use not allowed under the code?

3. Would variance, if granted and with conditions imposed, adversely affect:

a. Purpose of Code?

b. Public health, safety, and welfare?

c. Reasonable access to or use of the Lake by public or riparian owners?



Application for Variance at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay 

LMCD Board Meeting October 26, 2022 

Page 4 

4 

PUBLIC COMMENTS_________________________________________________________ 

In compliance with MN DNR General Permit 97-6098, the MN DNR, MCWD, and the City of 

Tonka Bay were provided information regarding the application on October 12, 2022. City and 

agency comments were due by October 22, 2022. Comments received as of October 21, 2022, 

are summarized below. Any comments received after October 21, 2022, will be provided at the 

Board meeting for review.  

• There have been no agency comments regarding the application.

• Staff from the City of Tonka Bay have provided a general indication that the proposal is

acceptable. However, formal consideration and review is anticipated at an upcoming

Council Meeting and will be provided prior to the LMCD Board action tentatively

scheduled for November 9, 2022.

As of October 21, comments received by LMCD staff from the general public are summarized 

below:  

• The LMCD Office has received no general public comments regarding the application.

PUBLIC HEARING____________________________________________________________ 

The public hearing provides an opportunity for interested individuals to present their views to the 

Board for consideration. This is an important part of reviewing the impact of a project. Only 

items under the LMCD Code and Board authority may be considered as part of any approval or 

denial decision.  

The public hearing notice was published in the October 13, 2022, edition of the Sun Sailor 

(official newspaper) and the October 15, 2022, edition of the Laker Pioneer. On October 13, 

2022, a public hearing notice was mailed to persons who reside upon or are owners of property 

within 350 feet of the Site. In addition, the Board packet was posted online and the agenda was 

posted on the LMCD bulletin board.  

RECOMMENDATION_________________________________________________________ 

If the board chooses to approve the variance, based on review of the Considerations of Variance 

factors, the minimum recommendations are provided for consideration. The Board may wish to 

consider other items.  

1. Receive formal approval from the City of Tonka Bay for the shared use of the fire

lane.

2. Ensure the shared uses are compatible and understand the City’s desire to use the fire

lane for riparian purposes may change in the future.

3. For the northern side setbacks, maintain a minimum 43.8 foot-setback and a 29.5

foot-setback, from shore as it extends into the lake as indicated on the site plan. If the

Board prefers, the option to shorten or remove the platform exists to increase setback

distances.



Application for Variance at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay 

LMCD Board Meeting October 26, 2022 

Page 5 

5 

4. For the southern side setbacks, the Board should consider whether it is reasonable to:

a. For the original submittal, allow the proposed setbacks with the existing

configuration submitted, for a variance distance of 4.2 feet, or

b. For the optional request, allow the addition of a canopy since it is increases

noncompliance beyond the dock configuration and use that has generally

existed at this site. The setback variance would be 4.4 feet toward shore and

3.7 feet as it extends into the lake respectively to the canopy material if

installed within the dock walkway.  From the dock structure, the setback

variance would be 2.2 feet,

c. For both original and optional request, suggest the Applicant review a

modification of the dock structure location or configuration to meet LMCD

Code requirements for setbacks,

5. The length of the dock structure and storage should be no longer than proposed 78

feet from the 929.4 feet OHW since water levels appear sufficient during normal

OHW.

6. Allow up to two (2) BSUs for the Site.

7. Provide an updated site plan with final configuration and measurements as approved

by the Board.

8. Apply standard variance conditions reflecting environmental, nuisances, maintenance,

etc.

BUDGET_____________________________________________________________________ 

N/A 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES_____________________________________________________ 

Operational 

Effectiveness 

Clear & Timely 

Communications 

Effective 

Governance 
X 

Lake 

Protection 
Other 

ATTACHMENTS______________________________________________________________ 

1. LMCD Code Excerpts

2. Aerial Imagery of Site

3. Proposed Site Plan

4. Variance Application & Submitted Documents

5. Public Hearing Notice (Sun Sailor and Laker Pioneer)

6. Public Hearing Notice Mailing

















LMCD Approved Site Plan 
(Exhibit B) of Variance, 
Dated 11/09/2022



 

LK110-4-835829.v2 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Site Plan Optional 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[See Findings of Facts Order] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
Lot 6, that part of adjoining vacated Mound Avenue and that part of adjoining vacated
Lafayette Avenue, Slocum's Rearrangement of Manitou Forest all described as beginning
at the intersection of the extension Westerly of the Southerly line of said Lot 6 with a line
drawn parallel with and 20 feet Westerly from the Westerly line of said Lot 6; thence
Northerly parallel with the Westerly line of said Lot 6 to an intersection with the
extension West of the North line of said Lot 6; thence East along the last mentioned
extension and along the North line of said Lot 6 and its extension to the shore of Lake
Minnetonka; thence Southerly along said shore to its intersection with the extension
Easterly of the Southerly line of said Lot 6; thence Westerly to the point of beginning.

SCOPE OF WORK & LIMITATIONS:
1. Showing the length and direction of  boundary lines of  the legal description listed

above.  The scope of  our services does not include determining what you own,
which is a legal matter.  Please check the legal description with your records or
consult with competent legal counsel, if  necessary, to make sure that it is correct and
that any matters of  record, such as easements, that you wish to be included on the
survey have been shown.

2. Showing the location of  observed existing improvements we deem necessary for the
survey.

3. Setting survey markers or verifying existing survey markers to establish the corners
of the property.

4. Existing building dimensions and setbacks measured to outside of siding or stucco.
5. This survey has been completed without the benefit of  a current title commitment.

There may be existing easements or other encumbrances that would be revealed by a
current title commitment.  Therefore, this survey does not purport to show any
easements or encumbrances other than the ones shown hereon.

6. The plat of  Slocum's Rearrangement of  Manitou Forest is old and vague.  We have
found and show various iron monuments from previous surveys.  We have used
these irons as our best evidence as to the location of  said Lot 6, Mound Ave, and
Lafayette Ave.

STANDARD SYMBOLS & CONVENTIONS:
"●" Denotes iron survey marker, found, unless otherwise noted.

#43503

LICENSE NO.

Wayne W. Preuhs

DATE

S1

APRIL 5, 2017

Minnetonka, Minnesota  55345

Phone (952) 474-7964

17917 Highway No. 7

Web: www.advsur.com

Advance
Surveying & Engineering, Co.

DENNIS NELSON
135 MOUND AVE.

CLIENT/JOB ADDRESS

TONKA BAY, MN

SHEET TITLE

EXISTING SURVEY
SHEET NO.

SHEET 1 OF 1

DWG ORIENTATION                       SCALE

221646   TB
REV  11 - 10

DRAWING NUMBER

20'10'0

MARCH 28, 2017

DATE SURVEYED:

APRIL 5, 2017

DATE DRAFTED:

SHEET SIZE: 17 X 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
929.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
929.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
25±

AutoCAD SHX Text
17±

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.13 S 26°12'05" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" W 205.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.38 N 75°28'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BITUMINOUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDINARY HIGH WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE MINNETONKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUND AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATED MOUND AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATED LAFAYETTE AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAWN AVE. (FIRE LANE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
D     o     c     k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D    o     c    k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D  o  c  k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D     o     c     k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D    o     c    k

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSU-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
B  S  U  -  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*	=INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO =INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO US FROM THE HOMEOWNER PER MEASUREMENTS TAKEN ON 9/1/22. THIS HAS NOT BEEN VERIFIED BY US. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'8" FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY **

AutoCAD SHX Text
**	=CANOPY COVER OVER =CANOPY COVER OVER BSU-1 AND NORTH DOCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SURVEY OR REPORT WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/8/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD DOCKS ONLY. NO OTHER UPDATES SHOWN, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 IF THERE ARE ANY, FROM 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/10/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCK SIZE CHANGES



 

Variance Application for Adjusted Dock Use Area and Side Setbacks 

Property: 135 Mound Ave, Tonka Bay, 55331 (Property Owners: Dennis Nelson/Barbra Franta) 

 For illustrative purposes only. Source: Hennepin County Interactive Property Map, 10/10/2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fire Lane 135 Mound Ave 



 

 

 

 

Variance Application for Adjusted Dock Use Area and Side Setbacks 

Property: 135 Mound Ave, Tonka Bay, 55331 (Property Owners: Dennis Nelson/Barbra Franta) 

For illustrative purposes only. Source: Hennepin County Interactive Property Map, 10/10/2022

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fire Lane 
135 Mound Ave 



 

 

 

 

Variance Application for Adjusted Dock Use Area and Side Setbacks 

Property: 135 Mound Ave, Tonka Bay, 55331 (Property Owners: Dennis Nelson/Barbra Franta) 

For illustrative purposes only. Source: Google Maps, 10/10/2022 

 

Fire Lane 
135 Mound Ave 





LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
Lot 6, that part of adjoining vacated Mound Avenue and that part of adjoining vacated
Lafayette Avenue, Slocum's Rearrangement of Manitou Forest all described as beginning
at the intersection of the extension Westerly of the Southerly line of said Lot 6 with a line
drawn parallel with and 20 feet Westerly from the Westerly line of said Lot 6; thence
Northerly parallel with the Westerly line of said Lot 6 to an intersection with the
extension West of the North line of said Lot 6; thence East along the last mentioned
extension and along the North line of said Lot 6 and its extension to the shore of Lake
Minnetonka; thence Southerly along said shore to its intersection with the extension
Easterly of the Southerly line of said Lot 6; thence Westerly to the point of beginning.

SCOPE OF WORK & LIMITATIONS:
1. Showing the length and direction of  boundary lines of  the legal description listed

above.  The scope of  our services does not include determining what you own,
which is a legal matter.  Please check the legal description with your records or
consult with competent legal counsel, if  necessary, to make sure that it is correct and
that any matters of  record, such as easements, that you wish to be included on the
survey have been shown.

2. Showing the location of  observed existing improvements we deem necessary for the
survey.

3. Setting survey markers or verifying existing survey markers to establish the corners
of the property.

4. Existing building dimensions and setbacks measured to outside of siding or stucco.
5. This survey has been completed without the benefit of  a current title commitment.

There may be existing easements or other encumbrances that would be revealed by a
current title commitment.  Therefore, this survey does not purport to show any
easements or encumbrances other than the ones shown hereon.

6. The plat of  Slocum's Rearrangement of  Manitou Forest is old and vague.  We have
found and show various iron monuments from previous surveys.  We have used
these irons as our best evidence as to the location of  said Lot 6, Mound Ave, and
Lafayette Ave.

STANDARD SYMBOLS & CONVENTIONS:
"●" Denotes iron survey marker, found, unless otherwise noted.

#43503

LICENSE NO.

Wayne W. Preuhs

DATE

S1

APRIL 5, 2017

Minnetonka, Minnesota  55345

Phone (952) 474-7964

17917 Highway No. 7

Web: www.advsur.com

Advance
Surveying & Engineering, Co.

DENNIS NELSON
135 MOUND AVE.

CLIENT/JOB ADDRESS

TONKA BAY, MN

SHEET TITLE

EXISTING SURVEY
SHEET NO.

SHEET 1 OF 1

DWG ORIENTATION                       SCALE

221646   TB
REV  11 - 10

DRAWING NUMBER

20'10'0

MARCH 28, 2017

DATE SURVEYED:

APRIL 5, 2017

DATE DRAFTED:

SHEET SIZE: 17 X 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
929.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
929.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
25±

AutoCAD SHX Text
17±

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.13 S 26°12'05" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" W 205.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.38 N 75°28'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BITUMINOUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDINARY HIGH WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE MINNETONKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUND AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATED MOUND AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATED LAFAYETTE AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAWN AVE. (FIRE LANE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
D     o     c     k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D    o     c    k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D  o  c  k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D     o     c     k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D    o     c    k

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSU-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
B  S  U  -  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*	=INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO =INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO US FROM THE HOMEOWNER PER MEASUREMENTS TAKEN ON 9/1/22. THIS HAS NOT BEEN VERIFIED BY US. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'8" FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY **

AutoCAD SHX Text
**	=CANOPY COVER OVER =CANOPY COVER OVER BSU-1 AND NORTH DOCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SURVEY OR REPORT WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/8/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD DOCKS ONLY. NO OTHER UPDATES SHOWN, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 IF THERE ARE ANY, FROM 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/10/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCK SIZE CHANGES



LMCD, 5341 Maywood Rd, Ste 200, Mound, MN 55364    P: 952.745.0789    Fx: 952.745.9085    E: lmcd@lmcd.org    Rev.04032020 

VARIANCE APPLICATION 
LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

For LMCD use: 
Fee Amount:   Check # ____   Date Received:  ____April 26 

1. CONTACT INFORMATION
Applicant:  Title (Owner, Authorized Agent, etc.): 

Address:  

City, State, Zip: 

Phone:   Email: 

Property Owner (if different from applicant): 

Relationship to Property Owner:  

Address:  

City, State, Zip:  

Phone:   Email: 

2. PROPERTY INFORMATION
Site Address:   

Abutting Lakeshore Property Owners (Name and Mailing Address) 

North or West: 

South or East: 

Other affected parties: 

3. PROPOSED VARIANCE
Type of Variance:  

State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required: 

mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org


Variance Application Page 2 

LMCD, 5341 Maywood Rd, Ste 200, Mound, MN 55364    P: 952.745.0789    Fx: 952.745.9085    E: lmcd@lmcd.org     Rev. 04032020 

4. ATTACHMENTS
Documents listed below are required; check that they are attached:

 Locator map, county plat map    
 Certified Land Survey, Legal Description 
 Existing facility site plan  

 Proposed facility site plan with scaled  

Names & mailing addresses of owners 
within a 350-foot radius of the property. 
(See note below.)

***Names & Mailing Addresses: The LMCD provides notice of a public hearing, which is published and mailed 
to owners within 350 feet of the subject property. The applicant is required to obtain mailing labels from 
Hennepin County for property owners within a 350-foot radius of the site. Labels are now available online by 
visiting https://gis.hennepin.us/locatenotify/default.asp. Set the buffer distance to 350 feet and print the “mail 
list,” which includes both taxpayer and resident information. If the property is located in Carver County, 
contact the LMCD office for assistance.

Several of the required attachments can be combined into a single document. Absence of requested data 
may result in a processing delay or the application may be deemed incomplete. 

5. FEES
Application Fee (Non-refundable)   $250.00 
Deposit (Refundable, upon full compliance with the Code and extent of 
administrative, inspection and legal service required.) 

$250.00 

TOTAL FEE ENCLOSED (This fee is for processing of the application and 
does not entitle the applicant to a variance.) 

$500.00 

I certify that the information provided herein and the attachments hereto are true and correct; I understand that 
any variance granted may be revoked by the District for violation of the LMCD code. I agree to reimburse the 
District for any legal, surveying, engineering, inspection, maintenance or other expenses incurred by the District 
in excess of the amount of the application fee. I consent to permitting officers and agents of the District to enter 
the premises at reasonable times to investigate and to determine whether or not the Code of the District is being 
complied with. 

I agree to submit a certified, as-built survey upon completion of the docks. 

Applicant’s Signature: 

________________________________   ______________________________    ______________________ 
Name                                                       Title       Date 

Return to: 
Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200 
Mound, MN  55364 

drawing of docks on abutting and 
other affected dockage

mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org
https://gis.hennepin.us/locatenotify/default.asp
















LMCD Approved Site Plan 
(Exhibit B) of Variance, 
Dated 11/09/2022



 

LK110-4-835829.v2 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Site Plan Optional 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[See Findings of Facts Order] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
Lot 6, that part of adjoining vacated Mound Avenue and that part of adjoining vacated
Lafayette Avenue, Slocum's Rearrangement of Manitou Forest all described as beginning
at the intersection of the extension Westerly of the Southerly line of said Lot 6 with a line
drawn parallel with and 20 feet Westerly from the Westerly line of said Lot 6; thence
Northerly parallel with the Westerly line of said Lot 6 to an intersection with the
extension West of the North line of said Lot 6; thence East along the last mentioned
extension and along the North line of said Lot 6 and its extension to the shore of Lake
Minnetonka; thence Southerly along said shore to its intersection with the extension
Easterly of the Southerly line of said Lot 6; thence Westerly to the point of beginning.

SCOPE OF WORK & LIMITATIONS:
1. Showing the length and direction of  boundary lines of  the legal description listed

above.  The scope of  our services does not include determining what you own,
which is a legal matter.  Please check the legal description with your records or
consult with competent legal counsel, if  necessary, to make sure that it is correct and
that any matters of  record, such as easements, that you wish to be included on the
survey have been shown.

2. Showing the location of  observed existing improvements we deem necessary for the
survey.

3. Setting survey markers or verifying existing survey markers to establish the corners
of the property.

4. Existing building dimensions and setbacks measured to outside of siding or stucco.
5. This survey has been completed without the benefit of  a current title commitment.

There may be existing easements or other encumbrances that would be revealed by a
current title commitment.  Therefore, this survey does not purport to show any
easements or encumbrances other than the ones shown hereon.

6. The plat of  Slocum's Rearrangement of  Manitou Forest is old and vague.  We have
found and show various iron monuments from previous surveys.  We have used
these irons as our best evidence as to the location of  said Lot 6, Mound Ave, and
Lafayette Ave.

STANDARD SYMBOLS & CONVENTIONS:
"●" Denotes iron survey marker, found, unless otherwise noted.

#43503

LICENSE NO.

Wayne W. Preuhs

DATE

S1

APRIL 5, 2017

Minnetonka, Minnesota  55345

Phone (952) 474-7964

17917 Highway No. 7

Web: www.advsur.com

Advance
Surveying & Engineering, Co.

DENNIS NELSON
135 MOUND AVE.

CLIENT/JOB ADDRESS

TONKA BAY, MN

SHEET TITLE

EXISTING SURVEY
SHEET NO.

SHEET 1 OF 1

DWG ORIENTATION                       SCALE

221646   TB
REV  11 - 10

DRAWING NUMBER

20'10'0

MARCH 28, 2017

DATE SURVEYED:

APRIL 5, 2017

DATE DRAFTED:

SHEET SIZE: 17 X 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
929.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
929.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
25±

AutoCAD SHX Text
17±

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.13 S 26°12'05" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" W 205.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.38 N 75°28'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BITUMINOUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDINARY HIGH WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE MINNETONKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUND AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATED MOUND AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATED LAFAYETTE AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAWN AVE. (FIRE LANE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
D     o     c     k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D    o     c    k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D  o  c  k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D     o     c     k

AutoCAD SHX Text
D    o     c    k

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSU-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
B  S  U  -  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*	=INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO =INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO US FROM THE HOMEOWNER PER MEASUREMENTS TAKEN ON 9/1/22. THIS HAS NOT BEEN VERIFIED BY US. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'8" FOOT DEPTH.*

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY **

AutoCAD SHX Text
**	=CANOPY COVER OVER =CANOPY COVER OVER BSU-1 AND NORTH DOCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SURVEY OR REPORT WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/8/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD DOCKS ONLY. NO OTHER UPDATES SHOWN, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 IF THERE ARE ANY, FROM 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/10/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCK SIZE CHANGES



Hennepin County Property Map Date: 9/12/2022

Comments:

1 inch = 200 feet

PARCEL ID: 2811723430054
 
OWNER NAME: D Nelson & B Franta
 
PARCEL ADDRESS: 135  Mound Ave,Tonka Bay MN 55331
 
PARCEL AREA: 0.36 acres, 15,743 sq ft
 
A-T-B: Torrens
 
SALE PRICE: $250,000
 
SALE DATE: 06/1989
 
SALE CODE: Warranty Deed
 
ASSESSED 2021, PAYABLE 2022
       PROPERTY TYPE: Residential
       HOMESTEAD: Homestead
       MARKET VALUE: $1,143,000
       TAX TOTAL: $14,570.98
 
ASSESSED 2022, PAYABLE 2023
      PROPERTY TYPE: Residential
      HOMESTEAD: Homestead
      MARKET VALUE: $1,454,000
 

This data (i) is furnished 'AS IS' with no 
representation as to completeness or 
accuracy; (ii) is furnished with no 
warranty of any kind; and (iii) is not suitable 
for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. 
Hennepin County shall not be liable for any 
damage, injury or loss resulting from this data.

COPYRIGHT © HENNEPIN 
COUNTY  2022



Hennepin County Property Map Date: 9/12/2022

Comments:

1 inch = 400 feet

PARCEL ID: 2811723430054
 
OWNER NAME: D Nelson & B Franta
 
PARCEL ADDRESS: 135  Mound Ave,Tonka Bay MN 55331
 
PARCEL AREA: 0.36 acres, 15,743 sq ft
 
A-T-B: Torrens
 
SALE PRICE: $250,000
 
SALE DATE: 06/1989
 
SALE CODE: Warranty Deed
 
ASSESSED 2021, PAYABLE 2022
       PROPERTY TYPE: Residential
       HOMESTEAD: Homestead
       MARKET VALUE: $1,143,000
       TAX TOTAL: $14,570.98
 
ASSESSED 2022, PAYABLE 2023
      PROPERTY TYPE: Residential
      HOMESTEAD: Homestead
      MARKET VALUE: $1,454,000
 

This data (i) is furnished 'AS IS' with no 
representation as to completeness or 
accuracy; (ii) is furnished with no 
warranty of any kind; and (iii) is not suitable 
for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. 
Hennepin County shall not be liable for any 
damage, injury or loss resulting from this data.

COPYRIGHT © HENNEPIN 
COUNTY  2022



97  28-117-23 43 0001
CITY OF TONKA BAY
4901 MANITOU RD
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0003
CRAIG ZAIM
20 WOODLAWN AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0005
CHARLES R MATTSON
5271 MANITOU RD
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0006
RICHARD A COULT
5291 MANITON RD
EXCELSIOR MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0007
MARY BRAY
5311 MANITOU RD
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0008
BENNETT BROS REAL ESTATE LLC
5325 MANITOU RD
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0013
COLSON CUSTOM HOMES LLC
80 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0014
PAUL D & SUZANNE K BISSEN
70 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0023
PAUL J KASTER
2600 CASCO POINT RD
WAYZATA MN  55391

97  28-117-23 43 0024
JAMES & KATHLEEN MALLERY
145 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0025
THOMAS H LINDQUIST
FELICIA R LINDQUIST
125 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0028
HEIDI LYNN JACQUIN
DAVID MICHAEL JACQUIN JR
751 SHILOH TERRACE
SANTA ROSA CA  95403

97  28-117-23 43 0029
WILLIAM B NELSON
75 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0032
ERIN WILBUR HEARST 2014 TRST
17001 THESTRAND
MINNETONKA MN 55345

97  28-117-23 43 0049
MICHAEL G SCHWARTZ
CYNTHIA K SCHWARTZ
195 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0050
NICHOLAS S JOHNSON
185 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN  55331

97  28-117-23 43 0051
KEITH SCHLEETER
LAURIE LICENCE SCHLEETER
6600 IROQUOIS TR
EDINA MN   55439

97  28-117-23 43 0052
NICHOLAS S JOHNSON
185 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN  55331

97  28-117-23 43 0053
NATHALIE K LY LIVING TRUST
165 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0054
DENNIS NELSON/BARBARA FRANTA
135 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0055
JOHN T KOHMAN
25 WOODLAWN AVE
TONKA BAY MN  55331

97  28-117-23 43 0056
EDWARD HUGH SAKRY
35 WOODLAWN AVE
EXCELSIOR MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0057
EDWARD HUGH SAKRY
35 WOODLAWN AVE
EXCELSIOR MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0067
JOSEPH J FISHER
30 WOODLAWN AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0068
CRAIG ZAIM
20 WOODLAWN AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0070
TYLER G & BROOKE CRONK
5339 MANITOU RD
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0072
CHARLES & SHARON KOXVOLD
90 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0073
CINDY SUE HEIMERL
100 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331

97  28-117-23 43 0074
SURESH KRISHNA
BHUVANA NANDAKUMAR
105 MOUND AVE
TONKA BAY MN   55331



Attachment 1  
Practical Difficulties Discussion 

P a g e  | 1 
 

I may cite some court cases in my discussion below, but I am fully aware of the unique powers 

the Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) holds to resolve dock placement issues on 

Lake Minnetonka.  I acknowledge that for practical reasons the LMCD has been effectively 

appointed by enactment of legislation by the Minnesota State Legislature to be “Judge and Jury” 

with respect to what is reasonable sharing of riparian rights. 

 

The subject property has approximately 35ft of shoreline (without considering the property that 

is part of the easement known as Woodlawn firelane) at the 929.4 OHWL with extreme pieing of 

the extended south easement line with my extended south property line.  This is created by the 

layout of the Woodlawn firelane which happened sometime in the 1800s.  This firelane was 

originally 60ft wide but is now 58ft due to a 1965 Vacation on the other side of the firelane (i.e. 

Mallery or north side) and represents a perpendicular ingress/egress easement. This easement 

ends at the water’s edge (the 929.4 OHWL) based on Minnesota Supreme Court precedent. 

Troska v. Brecht, 167 N.W. 1042, 1044 (Minn. 1918).  This condition creates the practical 

difficulty as this easement was originally designed as a street with an angle to make it easier for 

horses to get up the hill on Woodlawn Ave. to Mound Ave. from Lafayette Ave.   Lafayette Ave. 

was a street that ran along the shore of Lake Minnetonka (a bordering easement) and was 

Vacated many decades ago except where it intersected with Woodlawn Ave. 

 

In addition to the extreme pieing of the extended easement line with my extended south property 

line, created by the Woodlawn firelane layout, there are several other factors to consider here 

that I will address below: 
 

1) This property has historically had a dock on it prior to 1978.  Attached are pictures which we 

believe show the pre-1978 placement of a dock on this property and where my original dock was 

placed when I put in my first new dock after I bought the property in 1989 (See original dock 

pics attached).  The historical aspect of docks on this property is an important consideration when 

considering the reasonable nature of sharing of riparian rights as set forth in the original code of 

the LMCD. 

2) The property owners have exchanged correspondence with the City of Tonka Bay a few times 

over the years regarding our dock placement and usually with a new city administrator.  We have 

consistently responded with the practical difficulties we are faced with but have never effectively 

reached a written resolution.  In working with the current city administrator (Dan Tolsma) we 

have decided to proceed with this formal Variance request to the LMCD to resolve this issue so it 

does not continue to come up as a potential issue.  Attached as Attachment #2 is Resolution 22-

38 of the City of Tonka Bay dated October 25, 2022, that supports the placement of my dock as 

set for in my previously approved variance request to the LMCD and such placement is identical 

in this variance request. 

3) The Woodlawn firelane (firelane #16) is a class one firelane under Tonka Bay ordinance and its 

prescribed public use is as follows: 

 

Class I shall only be used for pedestrian access to the lake, fishing from shore, launching and 

retrieving small boats or watercraft not requiring a trailer and which are not used for 

commercial purposes.  



Attachment 1  
Practical Difficulties Discussion 

P a g e  | 2 
 

 

My dock placement does not impede any member of the public from carrying on these activities 

as the entire shoreline of firelane #16 is unimpeded and the 40ft that separates my dock from my 

neighbors, at its closest point (which is approximately 78 ft out into the lake), is more than 

adequate to allow any such public users easy access to the entire surface of Lake Minnetonka. A 

Minnesota Court of appeals case that would be relevant here is the McLafferty vs St. Aubin 

(Attachment #3). In this case the court allowed fee title owners (with no property directly 

abutting the lake, as the right of way was a bordering easement between their properties and the 

lake) to continue to maintain their docks which attached to the right of way until the city 

prescribed what riparian activities would be prescribed for the public and then evaluate if such 

use conflicted with keeping the docks there. In my case my dock attaches to my property clear of 

the easement, but the discussion is instructive for purposes of your review of my request. In 

addition the discussion in the case specifically discusses perpendicular or ingress/egress 

easements and the key part of the discussion which the previous LMCD legal counsel refused to 

acknowledge with the applicant is as follows: 

 

In other cases, the issue was the ownership of riparian rights when a street provides ingress 

and egress to a body of water, a concern different from that in bordering street easement 

cases. See Flynn v. Beisel, 257 Minn. 531, 537–39, 102 N.W.2d 284, 289–90 (1960); Troska 

v. Brecht, 140 Minn. 233, 238–39, 167 N.W. 1042, 1044 (1918). An ingress/egress easement 

(perpendicular to the shore) ordinarily does not have the potential to deprive a fee owner of 

all riparian rights because the fee owner owns adjoining property abutting the lake and 

providing separate riparian rights. 

 
4) The City of Tonka Bay has approved and/or allows reasonable divergence from the ADUA for 

several abutting property owners to class one, two and three firelanes in Tonka Bay. The most 

recent involving a variance from the LMCD for a similar situation to mine at 435 Lakeview Ave. 

which abuts class one firelane #9. The property at 435 Lakeview Ave. has approximately 51ft of 

lake shoreline abutting Lake Minnetonka (without considering the property that is part of the 

easement) with a dock that is approximately 84ft long. The easement line angles or pieing of the 

easement line with the opposite lot line, created by the firelane #9 easement layout, created 

conflicting riparian interests. The City of Tonka Bay approved the dock placement for 435 

Lakeview Ave. at the December 8, 2020, city council meeting (Proposed dock placement survey 

– Attachment #4 and city approval minutes – Attachment #5) prior to final LMCD variance 

approval.  

 

These approvals resolved a dock placement that originally stretched thru the entire ADUA, and in 

fact through the extended easement line of the property on the other side of the firelane. The city 

approved a new dock placement that allows the dock to extend within the extended fire lane 

easement lines and covering over 95% of the 25ft wide firelane. This dock also has a canopy/boat 

house that under LMCD ADUA rules would require a 20ft set back from the property line. As a 

result, the allowance from the prescriptive ADUA rules is about 35ft. The closest straight line 

between this dock and the dock on the other abutting property to the firelane is about 34ft. 

Apparently, the city and LMCD believes this allows for reasonable access for class one firelane 

#9 riparian activities creating a reasonable sharing of riparian rights. I agree with this conclusion 

and believe this is also instructive with respect to my request. 

 



Attachment 1  
Practical Difficulties Discussion 

P a g e  | 3 
 

a) There are other firelanes in Tonka Bay where the City of Tonka Bay allows for reasonable 

sharing of riparian rights with abutting riparian rights holders. They all appear to me to allow 

placement of docks by abutting property owners outside the City of Tonka Bay and LMCD 

ADUAs in a reasonable way. Most docks on these properties appear to cross into the 

extended easement lines of the abutting firelane and all allow for allowances from the 

ADUAs. These situations involve firelanes #1, #3, #5, #8, #10, #12, #15, #18, #19 and #21. 

Firelanes #1, #9, #10, #12, #15, #19 and #21 are class one firelanes. Firelanes #3, #8 and #18 

are class two firelanes. Firelane #5 is a class three firelane.  

 

b) The placement of my dock is presented on the site surveys I have included with abutting 

property owners’docks (note: surveys only includes sections of dock that are abutting to my 

property as each has a Canopy boat house and the typical “h” configuration (see “pic from 

Lower Walkout” attached).   My dock is similar in size and length to almost all the docks on 

riparian lots on Mound Ave. and to most docks on Lake Minnetonka. When compared to the 

City of Tonka Bay and LMCD approved dock at 435 Lakeview Ave. my dock only extends 

into the extended easement line of the firelane by less than 50% of the firelane width (28.5ft 

out of 58ft) compared to the over 95% (24ft out of 25ft) for 435 Lakeview Ave. In addition, 

my dock has a 40ft opening between my dock and my neighbors dock to allow access to 

Lake Minnetonka for public users of the firelane compared to the 34ft for the 435 Lakeview 

dock and in that situation, it requires public users to maneuver between the docks as it is not 

a spread that is parallel to the shoreline like my situation. This survey with dock presentation 

shows that my dock is a reasonable sharing of riparian rights with the City of Tonka Bay 

Woodlawn firelane #16.  

 

c) I would also like to note that the surveys that I have provided regarding placement of my 

dock shows unequivocally that my dock does not encroach on the firelane.  My dock may 

reasonably share riparian rights by crossing the extended easement line once beyond the 

929.4 ft. OHWL of Lake Minnetonka but in no case does it encroach on the Woodlawn 

firelane as the November 9, 2022 LMCD Finding of Facts and Order erroneously states.  I do 

request that any findings of fact and order created as a part of this variance request accurately 

reflect this fact. 

 

 

5) As previously approved by the LMCD in my previous variance request, I would like to have the 

opportunity to add a boat house canopy to my dock as I am having issues with low water and my 

boat lift with automatic cover requires the lake to be above 928.13 to get my boat off the lift 

without scraping the boat against the lift as it is backed out. I had to take my boat off my lift on 

9/6/22 as the lake level reached 928.13 and park it next to my dock with mooring covers on and 

awaiting rain and lake level rise to get it back on the lift.  As of filing date of this variance 

request my boat still cannot go back on my lift.   My fear is I may be gone for an extended period 

some summer and come back and not be able to get the boat off the lift at all.  However, a boat 

house canopy would work much better since the prospect of low lake levels with global warming 

are a continuing threat. 

 

My lower-level walkout patio is approximately 21ft above the 929.4 OHWL as well as the 

walkout level of all the neighboring properties with the closest properties either the same height 

or higher at their walkout levels.  As a result, a boat house canopy would not restrict the lake 



Attachment 1  
Practical Difficulties Discussion 

P a g e  | 4 
 

views of any neighboring properties.  In addition, for those using the firelane there would be 

close to 50ft of the “extended” firelane with no boat canopy to block a view from shore (see “pic 

from middle of firelane shore” attached).  One additional benefit of a boat house canopy would 

be that I could reduce the width of my slip as I had to expand it by two feet to fit the lift.  I could 

use that 2ft to get to approximately 13ft from my south neighbor’s property line and the canopy 

about 16 to 17ft from that property line. 

 

6) I would also like to have the opportunity to extend my dock during LMCD declared low water 

emergencies as all other riparian property owners have the right to do. 

 

 

7) I would like to summarize and clarify the variances that I am seeking.  First, I would like to state 

that the City of Tonka Bay has allowed me to use the entire shoreline of the Woodlawn firelane 

to be included with my shoreline (without considering the amount of my property that is part of 

the Woodlawn firelane easement) when considering how long my dock is permitted to be under 

LMCD guidelines.  With my easement free shoreline of 35ft and the Woodlawn firelane at 58ft 

that would allow for a dock of 93ft.  The length of my current dock and proposed dock is 

approximately 78ft.  This should also support my request to allow for the extension of my dock 

under LMCD declared low water emergencies. 

 

The variance from the extended property line and easement lines are as follows: 

 

The variance for a canopy boat house (which would allow me to shrink the width of the “h” 

by 22inches) from my extended south property line would be about 2.5ft for the dock beyond 

50ft from 929.4 OHWL as the setback would be a approximately 12.5ft compared to a 15ft 

LMCD prescribed set back.  The variance for the set back of the canopy would be about 4ft 

as the canopy would be set back approximately 16ft from the extended south property line 

compared to a 20ft LMCD prescribed set back.  

 

The variance request for my dock without a canopy boat house from my south extended 

property line would be approximately 4.2ft for the portion of the dock beyond 50ft from the 

929.4 OHWL 

 

The variance requested from the extended easement line are extensive as the pieing peaks the 

further into the lake you get.  With that said, I understand Tonka Bay has no separate 

ordinance for canopy boat houses and only has a dock set back requirement of 10ft.  As a 

result, the variance from the easement line at its furthest into the lake is 38.5ft (58ft wide 

easement less 29,5ft from extended north easement line plus the 10ft prescribed set back by 

Tonka Bay ordinance).  From the closest point of the 929.4 OHWL the variance requested 

would be zero under LMCD rules (5ft set back allowed for properties with less than 50ft of 

shoreline and in existence on 02/02/1970) and 5ft under Tonka Bay ordinance prescribing 

10ft.  So, the variances requested from LMCD prescribed side set backs (from the extended 

easement line closest to my extended south property line) scales from zero at the 929.4 

OHWL to 38.5ft at the most northerly point of the dock 78ft out into the lake.   

 

 

 



Attachment 1  
Practical Difficulties Discussion 

P a g e  | 5 
 

Conclusion  

 

My dock does not interfere with the riparian activities of the public as set forth in the City of Tonka 

Bay ordinance for Class One fire lanes and given the unique character of the property, with its severe 

easement line angles, it shares the competing riparian interests in a reasonable way that is similar to 

other similar properties in Tonka Bay.  As previously pointed out, one of these properties dock 

placement has been recently approved by the City of Tonka Bay and the LMCD and the resulting  

varainces allow for more liberal sharing of competing riparian interests than exists related to my 

property and fire lane #16.  The variances requested form my extended south property line are 

relatively small compared to the prescribed LMCD set backs and zero when compared to Tonka Bay 

ordinances.  I respectfully ask the LMCD to approve my variance requests for my current dock 

placement and allow a boat house canopy cover, as well as allow for extension of either of these 

options under LMCD declared low water emergencies. 

 

The condition associated with this variance that was in paragraph 6.g. of the November 9, 2022 

approved variance would instead read as follows: 

 

• If the City ever elects to more fully exercise its riparian rights associated with the fire lane 

and withdraws its consent (because it determines the Applicant’ dock may interferes with its 

proposed riparian uses), the Applicant may be required to modify his dock configuration to 

reasonably share riparian rights in accordance with Minnesota riparian rights laws and court 

decisions as they exists at the time of such exercise by the City.  If consent is ever withdrawn, 

the Applicant or any future property owner is encouraged to work with the City to identify a 

solution that will work for both parties and to submit an application seeking whatever 

approvals from the LMCD that may be required to facilitate the agreed upon plan. 

 

 

The applicant believes this condition is proportional to the potential variance to be granted which 

merely confirms that I have been reasonably sharing riparian rights with the City of Tonka Bay 

easement known as the Woodlawn Firelane.  The McLafferty case that was cited in the originally 

approved variance conditions deals with a different set of facts from the case at hand and ignores 

specific language in such case that points out that the issue may be resolved differently if the 

easement is a perpendicular ingress/egress public access (as the Woodlawn Firelane is) vs a 

bordering public access as existed in the McLafferty case.  This case is still relevant from the 

standpoint that if the city has not fully exercised it’s riparian rights the fee owners of the easement 

(even those fee owners with no private property directly abutting the lake) may avail themselves of 

such riparian rights not exercised as long as they do not unreasonably interfere with those riparian 

rights so exercised by the municipality.  





McLafferty v. St. Aubin, 500 N.W.2d 165 (1993)  

 

 

 © 2021 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 1 

 

 
 

500 N.W.2d 165 
Court of Appeals of Minnesota. 

Patrick J. McLAFFERTY, et al., Appellants, 
v. 

John B. ST. AUBIN, et al., Defendants, 
and 

City of Shoreview, Intervenor, Respondent. 

No. C5–92–2249. 
| 

May 25, 1993. 

Synopsis 

Landowners brought quiet title action against city to 

clarify riparian rights on their land, across which city had 

dedicated street easement. The District Court, Ramsey 
County, Mary L. Klas, J., entered judgment in favor of 

city, and landowners appealed. The Court of Appeals, 

Davies, J., held that: (1) owner of easement and owner of 

underlying fee share riparian rights, and (2) landowner’s 

use of riparian land to construct docks and other 

improvements did not impermissibly burden city’s 

riparian rights. 

  

Reversed. 

  

Procedural Posture(s): On Appeal. 

 
 

West Headnotes (5) 

 

 

[1] 

 

Water Law Title and rights in general 

Water Law Easements Over Riparian Lands 

and for Access to and Use of Waters 
 

 Owner of easement and owner of underlying fee 

share riparian rights. 

 

 

 

 

[2] 

 

Water Law Title and rights in general 

 

 City which held dedicated street easement 

bordering lake did not have exclusive riparian 

rights. 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

 

 

 

[3] 

 

Water Law Nature and Extent of Rights in 

General 

Water Law Right to construct or maintain 

 

 “Riparian rights” are generally described as the 

rights to use and enjoy the profits and 

advantages of the water; riparian rights include 

the right to build and maintain, for private or 
public use, wharves, piers, and landings on the 

riparian land and extending into the water, and 

also includes such rights as hunting, fishing, 

boating, sailing, irrigation, and growing and 

harvesting wild rice. 

4 Cases that cite this headnote 

 

 

 

[4] 

 

Water Law Wharves, docks, piers and similar 

structures 
 

 Landowners’ lakeshore improvements 

consisting of docks and beaches did not 

unreasonably interfere with city’s exercise of 

riparian rights resulting from its dedicated street 

easement on the land where the city was not 

planning to build a beach or public dock or 

make any other use of the shoreline to 

accommodate public access; and landowners 

could maintain their docks and other 

improvements without burdening the city. 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

 

 

 

[5] 

 

Water Law Wharves, docks, piers and similar 

structures 

 

 Even if landowners’ docks and other 

improvements on riparian land gave the 

impression that dedicated street easement across 

the land was private property, thus having a 

chilling effect on the public’s exercise of the 

http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0191712301&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0247729301&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1231/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1281/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1281/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1231/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/DocHeadnoteLink?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&headnoteId=199311096200220100217065120&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=CitingReferences&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1228/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1228/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1248/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/DocHeadnoteLink?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&headnoteId=199311096200320100217065120&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=CitingReferences&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1250(2)/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1250(2)/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/DocHeadnoteLink?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&headnoteId=199311096200420100217065120&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=CitingReferences&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1250(2)/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/KeyNumber/405k1250(2)/View.html?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)


McLafferty v. St. Aubin, 500 N.W.2d 165 (1993)  

 

 

 © 2021 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 2 

 

city’s riparian rights, that chilling effect did not 

rise to the level of an impermissible interference 
with the city’s riparian rights where the city was 

not actively asserting any particular riparian 

right for the public’s benefit. 

2 Cases that cite this headnote 

 

 

 

 

*166 Syllabus by the Court 

1. A dedicated street easement does not confer exclusive 

riparian rights on the municipality owning the easement. 

  

2. A decision by a municipality with a lakeside street 

easement to allow the lakeshore to return to its natural 

state is not an exercise of riparian rights depriving other 

owners of their riparian rights. 

  

Attorneys and Law Firms 

Peter J. McCall, Stapleton, Nolan & McCall, P.A., St. 

Paul, for appellants. 

Jerome P. Filla, John Michael Miller, Peterson, Fram & 

Bergman, St. Paul, for respondent. 

Carla Heyl, League of Minnesota Cities, Shoreview, for 

amicus curiae. 

Considered and decided by AMUNDSON, P.J., and 

CRIPPEN and DAVIES, JJ. 

 

 

 

 

OPINION 

DAVIES, Judge. 

Property owners in quiet title action challenge decision 

ordering them to cease exercise of their riparian rights. 

We reverse. 

  

 

 

FACTS 

Appellants Patrick and Brenda McLafferty and Frederick 

and Lois Gelbmann (“the property owners”) own property 

abutting Lake Wabasso in Shoreview. Their property and 

other private property along the lake is subject to a street 

easement that runs along the shore of Lake Wabasso. The 

city has never improved or maintained the avenue 

(Wabasso Avenue) despite its dedication to public use a 
century ago. 

  

The property owners have maintained docks on the lake 

since the 1940s. And for at least 20 years, the property 

owners, and a number of their neighbors, have mowed the 

grass within the easement, planted trees and shrubbery, 

and maintained the shoreline of the lake so it would be 

suitable for their recreational use. They have also 

removed lake vegetation and sometimes added fill and 

constructed small beaches. 

  
Some members of the public currently use the easement 

for walking and for access to an adjacent county park. In 

the past, the public has used the easement to camp, swim, 

boat, and walk. Until the 1960s, the public used the area 

to trap, fish, and frog-hunt. 

  

In 1986, the property owners petitioned the city to vacate 

the avenue. After a study committee appointed by the city 

concluded that the shoreline included in the avenue 

should be allowed to return to its natural state, the city 

denied the petition for vacation and ordered the property 

owners to remove their docks from the shore and riparian 
waters.1 

  

The property owners refused to remove the docks and 

brought a quiet title action to clarify their rights. The trial 

court found that both the city and the property owners 

hold riparian rights, but that the city’s riparian rights are 

paramount. The court also found the property owners’ 

docks, beaches, and removal of vegetation to be 

incompatible with the city’s exercise of its riparian rights. 

The court ordered the property owners to refrain from any 

actions that would interfere with the public’s right of 
access to the lake, to remove the existing docks and 

man-made beaches, and to refrain from any further 

exercise of any rights other than those granted them as 

members of the general public. The court also ordered the 

property owners to refrain in the future from interfering 

with the city’s riparian rights, including the city’s right to 

construct docks or beaches or to allow the shoreline to 

http://www.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/DocHeadnoteLink?docGuid=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&headnoteId=199311096200520100217065120&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=CitingReferences&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0122561501&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0164407901&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0224498901&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0247729501&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0247728201&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0247729301&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=h&pubNum=176284&cite=0247729301&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)


McLafferty v. St. Aubin, 500 N.W.2d 165 (1993)  

 

 

 © 2021 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 3 

 

return to its natural state. 

  
 

 

ISSUES 

I. Does the dedicated street easement bordering Lake 

Wabasso confer exclusive riparian rights on the city? 

  

II. Is the city’s current exercise of its riparian rights 

sufficient to require the property owners to remove 
lakeshore improvements? 

  

 

 

*167 ANALYSIS 

 

I. 

The trial court first ruled that the riparian rights 

appurtenant to the street easement are exclusive and that 

the property owners have no rights other than those 

granted them as members of the general public. 

  
[1] Under Minnesota law, however, the owner of an 

easement and the owners of the underlying fee share the 

riparian rights. In Brisbine v. St. Paul & Sioux City 

R.R., 23 Minn. 114 (1876), the supreme court determined 

that the riparian rights appurtenant to a strip of property 

extending from the middle of a dedicated street easement 
to the shore of the Mississippi belonged to the fee owner 

of the property. Id. at 129–130. Because the fee owner 

held riparian rights, the city did not hold exclusive 

riparian rights, although it owned the street easement 

bordering the river. 

  

In Hanford v. St. Paul & Duluth R.R., 43 Minn. 104, 

42 N.W. 596 (1890), the court distinguished from 

Brisbine a situation where a railroad had acquired the 

exclusive right to occupy and use land to which riparian 

rights attached. Id. at 110, 42 N.W. at 597–98. In 

that case, the railroad’s right of occupancy carried with it 

exclusive riparian rights. Id. at 109, 42 N.W. at 597. In 

Brisbine, in contrast, 

[t]he public right of use was not 

exclusive so as to cut off the [fee 
owner’s] communication between 

the land and the water, and he 

could therefore use and enjoy the 

riparian rights. 

Id. at 110, 42 N.W. at 598. 

  

The Brisbine principle also applied in Wait v. May, 48 

Minn. 453, 51 N.W. 471 (1892). There, the court 

specifically indicated that riparian rights were held by a 

fee owner who held property extending to a lakeshore and 

subject to a street easement bordering the lake. Id. at 

461–62, 51 N.W. at 473. 

  
[2] Authority outside Minnesota supports the conclusion 

that the city does not hold exclusive riparian rights. See 

Marshall v. Hartman, 104 Fla. 143, 139 So. 441, 445 

(1932); Johnson v. Grenell, 188 N.Y. 407, 81 N.E. 161, 

161 (Ct.App.1907). At least one case holds that in this 

situation, a street easement carries with it no riparian 
rights. Tolchester Beach Improvement Co. v. Boyd, 161 

Md. 269, 156 A. 795, 798 (Ct.App.1931). Further, a 

treatise on the subject asserts that riparian rights depend 

on the owner’s property touching the water. Thus, 

to have the effect of destroying the 

[riparian] rights of the abutting 

owner, the fee of a highway 

[bordering a navigable water] must 

be in the public. 

1 Henry P. Farnham, Waters and Water Rights § 144 

(1904) (emphasis added). 

  
The city contends that Minnesota cases decided after Wait 

recognize exclusive riparian rights in the easement holder. 

But the cases the city cites all involve fact patterns 

different from this case and do not address the issue here. 

For example, in Village of Wayzata v. Great N. Ry. 

Co., 50 Minn. 438, 52 N.W. 913 (1892), while 

determining that a street easement bordering a lake 

conferred riparian rights on the public, the court did not 

consider, or even mention, the rights of the fee owner of 

the street. The issue in that case involved the railroad’s 

responsibility to facilitate public access to the water, 

given the existence of public riparian rights. See id., 

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7dc5223b006111da9439b076ef9ec4de&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1876007189&pubNum=548&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1876007189&pubNum=548&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7dc5223b006111da9439b076ef9ec4de&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1876007189&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7edc616f001b11da8ac8f235252e36df&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1889038504&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1889038504&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7edc616f001b11da8ac8f235252e36df&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1889038504&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7edc616f001b11da8ac8f235252e36df&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1889038504&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_597&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_597
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7edc616f001b11da8ac8f235252e36df&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1889038504&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_597&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_597
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7edc616f001b11da8ac8f235252e36df&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1889038504&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_598&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_598
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7522a2f5000d11dabf60c1d57ebc853e&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892004346&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892004346&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I7522a2f5000d11dabf60c1d57ebc853e&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892004346&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_473&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_473
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892004346&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_473&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_473
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1932111062&pubNum=734&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_734_445&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_734_445
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1932111062&pubNum=734&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_734_445&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_734_445
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1907004975&pubNum=577&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_577_161&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_577_161
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1907004975&pubNum=577&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_577_161&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_577_161
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1931116450&pubNum=161&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_161_798&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_161_798
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1931116450&pubNum=161&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_161_798&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_161_798
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=Ide69cde9005f11da83e7e9deff98dc6f&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892005724&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892005724&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=Ide69cde9005f11da83e7e9deff98dc6f&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892005724&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_914&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_914


McLafferty v. St. Aubin, 500 N.W.2d 165 (1993)  

 

 

 © 2021 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 4 

 

50 Minn. at 443–44, 52 N.W. at 914. 

  
In other cases, the issue was the ownership of riparian 

rights when a street provides ingress and egress to a body 

of water, a concern different from that in bordering street 

easement cases. See Flynn v. Beisel, 257 Minn. 531, 

537–39, 102 N.W.2d 284, 289–90 (1960); Troska v. 

Brecht, 140 Minn. 233, 238–39, 167 N.W. 1042, 1044 

(1918). An ingress/egress easement (perpendicular to the 

shore) ordinarily does not have the potential to deprive a 

fee owner of all riparian rights because the fee owner 

owns adjoining property abutting the lake and providing 

separate riparian rights. Further, none of these cases have 

determined that the riparian rights incidental to a 

municipality’s easement are exclusive. See Flynn, 257 

Minn. at 539, 102 N.W.2d at 293 (township had riparian 

rights to be enjoyed in common with the fee owners of 

*168 the property); Troska, 140 Minn. at 237–38, 167 

N.W. at 1044 (holding that persons “other than fee 

owners may possess riparian rights”). 

  

The city, therefore, under the Brisbine line of cases, does 

not have exclusive riparian rights here and cannot order 

the fee owners to remove their docks on the basis of 
exclusivity. 

  

 

 

II. 

The trial court ruled that, if the riparian rights in the 

property are shared, the city’s rights are paramount and 

include the right to influence the character of the 
shoreline. Thus, the court ordered the property owners to 

remove any improvements made to the lakeshore. The 

court decided this was a valid exercise of the city’s 

riparian rights, to which the property owners’ secondary 

rights must yield. 

  
[3] Riparian rights are generally described as the rights to 

use and enjoy the profits and advantages of the water. See 

78 Am.Jur.2d Waters § 263 (1975). The riparian owner 

has a right to make such use of the 

lake over its entire surface, in 
common with all other abutting 

owners, provided such use is 

reasonable and does not unduly 

interfere with the exercise of 

similar rights on the part of other 

abutting owners. 

Johnson v. Seifert, 257 Minn. 159, 169, 100 N.W.2d 

689, 697 (1960). 

  
Riparian rights include the right to build and maintain, for 

private or public use, wharves, piers, and landings on the 

riparian land and extending into the water. State v. 

Korrer, 127 Minn. 60, 71–72, 148 N.W. 617, 622 (1914). 

They also include such rights as hunting, fishing, boating, 

sailing, irrigating, and growing and harvesting wild rice. 

In re Application of Central Baptist Theological 

Seminary, 370 N.W.2d 642, 646 (Minn.App.1985), pet. 

for rev. denied (Minn. Sept. 19, 1985). 

  
[4] The city has not established that it is presently 

exercising its riparian rights. Riparian rights are generally 

positive rights, fostering use of the water for navigation, 

recreation, or harvest. At this point, the city does not 
intend to build a beach, a public dock, or make any other 

use of the shoreline that will accommodate public access 

to or use of the lake. Thus, the city is attempting to 

impede the property owner’s exercise of traditional 

riparian rights, but not by purposeful use of its own valid 

riparian rights. Under these circumstances, the property 

owner’s lakeshore improvements do not unreasonably 

interfere with the city’s exercise of riparian rights, 

although the improvements may frustrate some nascent 

thoughts of zoning. 

  
If, in the future, the city decides to exercise its riparian 

rights purposefully, the property owners may be required 

to yield. At this point, however, the property owners may 

maintain their docks and other improvements without 

burdening the city. 

  
[5] The trial court found that the property owners’ docks 

and other improvements gave the impression that 

Wabasso Avenue was private property and thus had a 

“chilling” effect on the public’s exercise of the city’s 

riparian rights. Even if this is true, the “chilling effect” 

does not rise to the level of an impermissible interference 
because the city is not actively asserting any particular 

riparian right for the public’s benefit and the property 

owners’ use of the avenue and shoreline does not unduly 

burden the present passive use by the public. See 

Johnson, 257 Minn. at 169, 100 N.W.2d at 697. 

  

Moreover, the city may be equally responsible for 

deterring the public from exercising the city’s riparian 

rights. The avenue does not appear to be marked as a 

http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1892005724&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_914&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_914
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=Ib62f37b3fe8a11d99439b076ef9ec4de&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1960117167&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_289&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_289
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1960117167&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_289&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_289
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I003d7bb6001a11dabf60c1d57ebc853e&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1918001329&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_1044&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_1044
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1918001329&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_1044&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_1044
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1918001329&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_1044&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_1044
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=Ib62f37b3fe8a11d99439b076ef9ec4de&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1960117167&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_293&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_293
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1960117167&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_293&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_293
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I003d7bb6001a11dabf60c1d57ebc853e&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1918001329&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_1044&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_1044
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1918001329&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_1044&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_1044
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=0281197284&pubNum=0113760&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=TS&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=Ia89eea41fe8611d98ac8f235252e36df&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1960116945&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_697&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_697
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1960116945&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_697&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_697
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=I004f7d15001a11dabf60c1d57ebc853e&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1914001703&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_622&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_622
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1914001703&pubNum=594&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_594_622&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_594_622
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1985133599&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_646&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_646
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1985133599&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_646&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_646
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/RelatedInformation/Flag?documentGuid=Ia89eea41fe8611d98ac8f235252e36df&transitionType=InlineKeyCiteFlags&originationContext=docHeaderFlag&Rank=2&ppcid=68aefbdb1ad34c898dbe88fe253ee35a&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1960116945&pubNum=595&originatingDoc=I98ee7085ff7511d98ac8f235252e36df&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_595_697&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_sp_595_697


McLafferty v. St. Aubin, 500 N.W.2d 165 (1993)  

 

 

 © 2021 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 5 

 

street or even as public property. If the property owners 

removed their docks and did not mow the grass, the 
public would probably still continue to view the avenue as 

“private” property, unless the city took some step to 

identify it as a public way. 

  

 

 

DECISION 

The city and the property owners share the riparian rights 
appurtenant to the strip of property bordering the lake. 

The city’s current exercise of riparian rights is insufficient 

*169 to require the property owners to cease exercise of 
their own riparian rights by removing lakeshore 

improvements. 

  

Reversed. 

  

All Citations 

500 N.W.2d 165 

 

Footnotes 
 

1 
 

The city had earlier formulated a plan to construct a recreational trail on the easement, but it does not intend to 
implement that plan until at least 1995. 
 

 
 

 

End of Document 
 

© 2021 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 
 

 
 

 









Dennis Nelson Public Comments 

 at LMCD December 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 

Good Evening, my name is Dennis Nelson and I reside at 135 Mound Ave in Tonka 

Bay. 

 

I would like to take my five minutes to talk about my experience, as a variance 

applicant, of the process I went through and what I consider good and bad 

 

I started this process with a meeting on July 22 with LMCD staff, City of Tonka Bay 

staff and their attorney.  The first question I asked was whether we could resolve 

our issue through agreement as neighbors do, without a variance, through 

informal agreement to eliminate the property line between us as board member 

Jabbour commented during the public hearing.  The basic answer I heard to my 

question is a formal variance might be preferred as it would be filed against my 

Hennepin county property records (latter in process I would learn that such filing 

would be totally my responsibility).  I was convinced by LMCD staff that a variance 

was the way to go. 

 

The process went reasonable smooth until it came to the findings of facts and 

Order.  With less than a week before the next board meeting I quickly responded 

to the draft with edits to correct erroneous facts and compromise language on 

conditions associated with contingent future events.  The only edit they would 

accept was a correction in the spelling of my wife’s name.  The reason I was given 

is that they would not make changes based on advice from their legal counsel.  

 

I sought to have a conversation with LMCD legal council to discuss the issues I was 

having with this document, thinking I could arrive at a reasonable compromise.  

However, after given permission to contact LMCD counsel I was informed that he 

would not be available for 3 or 4 days.  Once he was available, one day before the 



meeting, he refused to take my calls and refused to return my calls.  All I received 

was a couple of cryptic emails including an email that I would have to debate him 

at the board meeting to change any of the language.  Not having adequate time 

to prepare or hire competent legal counsel to debate LMCD counsel I decided to 

stop trying to change anything and just watch what would happen at the meeting 

the next day. 

The finding of facts and order was simply approved as part of a consent agenda 

with no discussion.    

I believe there are numerous erroneous facts in the final document and several 

that make me look bad.  The findings say that I have persistently blocked access 

to Lake Minnetonka through the fire lane, which is false.  They also say that my 

dock encroaches into the city fire lane even though I provided a survey to the 

LMCD that shows that it does not. 

The findings of fact and order incorporates the staff report by reference and it has 

numerous errors.  Most of these errors I had tired to alert the staff to prior to the 

public hearing but they still persist.  

The most significant issue I have is the condition stated in paragraph 6.g. which 

has me concede that the city of Tonka Bay has superior riparian rights to me and 

if they expand their riparian uses I must yield to them.  There is no indication in 

the record that the City of Tonka Bay requested this language.  The case that is 

cited has a different set of facts than exists in my situation and I believe the 

attorney’s wording overreaches on the concept of “superior”  riparian rights.  I 

simply tried to get the wording changed to acknowledge my separate riparian 

right that the case he cites acknowledges for properties that have private 

property that directly abuts the lake.  They case he cites deals with properties 

that do not have private property that directly abuts the lake as they had a 

boarding easement between them and the lake and not a perpendicular 

easement boarding their properties with each abutting the lake.  I did 

acknowledge that if the City of Tonka Bay did expand their riparian rights that I 

would need to work with the city to come up with a new dock set up but one that 

would reasonable share riparian rights equally and not where one was superior to 

the other.   



I have also found that LMCD counsel is partners in the same law firm as the City of 

Tonka Bay counsel, which creates a conflict of interest.  I see that the LMCD RFP 

for new legal counsel asks proposing law firms to indicate what procedures the 

firms would utilize to identify and resolve conflicts of interest.  I am concerned 

that there had been no discussion of the conflict of interest that existed during 

my variance request process or procedures that might have been used to resolve 

it. 

I am not sure what can be done at this time to fix the issues with the findings of 

fact and order but I would appreciate if the Board would move to resolve the 

issues I have raised.  If nothing can be done, is there a process to apply for an 

annulment of the existing variance and potentially start over as I believe the 

condition imposed is not the law and is not proportional to the simple 

confirmation that my dock, without adjustment, reasonable shares riparian rights 

with the fire lane. 



462.357 OFFICIAL CONTROLS: ZONING ORDINANCE.

Subdivision 1. Authority for zoning. For the purpose of promoting the public health, safety, morals,
and general welfare, a municipality may by ordinance regulate on the earth's surface, in the air space above
the surface, and in subsurface areas, the location, height, width, bulk, type of foundation, number of stories,
size of buildings and other structures, the percentage of lot which may be occupied, the size of yards and
other open spaces, the density and distribution of population, the uses of buildings and structures for trade,
industry, residence, recreation, public activities, or other purposes, and the uses of land for trade, industry,
residence, recreation, agriculture, forestry, soil conservation, water supply conservation, conservation of
shorelands, as defined in sections 103F.201 to 103F.221, access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems
as defined in section 216C.06, flood control or other purposes, and may establish standards and procedures
regulating such uses. To accomplish these purposes, official controls may include provision for purchase of
development rights by the governing body in the form of conservation easements under chapter 84C in areas
where the governing body considers preservation desirable and the transfer of development rights from those
areas to areas the governing body considers more appropriate for development. No regulation may prohibit
earth sheltered construction as defined in section 216C.06, subdivision 14, relocated residential buildings,
or manufactured homes built in conformance with sections 327.31 to 327.35 that comply with all other
zoning ordinances promulgated pursuant to this section. The regulations may divide the surface, above
surface, and subsurface areas of the municipality into districts or zones of suitable numbers, shape, and area.
The regulations shall be uniform for each class or kind of buildings, structures, or land and for each class
or kind of use throughout such district, but the regulations in one district may differ from those in other
districts. The ordinance embodying these regulations shall be known as the zoning ordinance and shall
consist of text and maps. A city may by ordinance extend the application of its zoning regulations to
unincorporated territory located within two miles of its limits in any direction, but not in a county or town
which has adopted zoning regulations; provided that where two or more noncontiguous municipalities have
boundaries less than four miles apart, each is authorized to control the zoning of land on its side of a line
equidistant between the two noncontiguous municipalities unless a town or county in the affected area has
adopted zoning regulations. Any city may thereafter enforce such regulations in the area to the same extent
as if such property were situated within its corporate limits, until the county or town board adopts a
comprehensive zoning regulation which includes the area.

Subd. 1a. Certain zoning ordinances. A municipality must not enact, amend, or enforce a zoning
ordinance that has the effect of altering the existing density, lot-size requirements, or manufactured home
setback requirements in any manufactured home park constructed before January 1, 1995, if the manufactured
home park, when constructed, complied with the then existing density, lot-size and setback requirements.

Subd. 1b. Conditional uses. A manufactured home park, as defined in section 327.14, subdivision 3,
is a conditional use in a zoning district that allows the construction or placement of a building used or
intended to be used by two or more families.

Subd. 1c. Amortization prohibited. Except as otherwise provided in this subdivision, a municipality
must not enact, amend, or enforce an ordinance providing for the elimination or termination of a use by
amortization which use was lawful at the time of its inception. This subdivision does not apply to adults-only
bookstores, adults-only theaters, or similar adults-only businesses, as defined by ordinance.

Subd. 1d. Nuisance. Subdivision 1c does not prohibit a municipality from enforcing an ordinance
providing for the prevention or abatement of nuisances, as defined in section 561.01, or eliminating a use
determined to be a public nuisance, as defined in section 617.81, subdivision 2, paragraph (a), clauses (i) to
(ix), without payment of compensation.

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

462.357MINNESOTA STATUTES 20221



Subd. 1e. Nonconformities. (a) Except as otherwise provided by law, any nonconformity, including
the lawful use or occupation of land or premises existing at the time of the adoption of an additional control
under this chapter, may be continued, including through repair, replacement, restoration, maintenance, or
improvement, but not including expansion, unless:

(1) the nonconformity or occupancy is discontinued for a period of more than one year; or

(2) any nonconforming use is destroyed by fire or other peril to the extent of greater than 50 percent of
its estimated market value, as indicated in the records of the county assessor at the time of damage, and no
building permit has been applied for within 180 days of when the property is damaged. In this case, a
municipality may impose reasonable conditions upon a zoning or building permit in order to mitigate any
newly created impact on adjacent property or water body. When a nonconforming structure in the shoreland
district with less than 50 percent of the required setback from the water is destroyed by fire or other peril to
greater than 50 percent of its estimated market value, as indicated in the records of the county assessor at
the time of damage, the structure setback may be increased if practicable and reasonable conditions are
placed upon a zoning or building permit to mitigate created impacts on the adjacent property or water body.

(b) Any subsequent use or occupancy of the land or premises shall be a conforming use or occupancy.
A municipality may, by ordinance, permit an expansion or impose upon nonconformities reasonable
regulations to prevent and abate nuisances and to protect the public health, welfare, or safety. This subdivision
does not prohibit a municipality from enforcing an ordinance that applies to adults-only bookstores, adults-only
theaters, or similar adults-only businesses, as defined by ordinance.

(c) Notwithstanding paragraph (a), a municipality shall regulate the repair, replacement, maintenance,
improvement, or expansion of nonconforming uses and structures in floodplain areas to the extent necessary
to maintain eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program and not increase flood damage potential or
increase the degree of obstruction to flood flows in the floodway.

(d) Paragraphs (d) to (j) apply to shoreland lots of record in the office of the county recorder on the date
of adoption of local shoreland controls that do not meet the requirements for lot size or lot width. A
municipality shall regulate the use of nonconforming lots of record and the repair, replacement, maintenance,
improvement, or expansion of nonconforming uses and structures in shoreland areas according to paragraphs
(d) to (j).

(e) A nonconforming single lot of record located within a shoreland area may be allowed as a building
site without variances from lot size requirements, provided that:

(1) all structure and septic system setback distance requirements can be met;

(2) a Type 1 sewage treatment system consistent with Minnesota Rules, chapter 7080, can be installed
or the lot is connected to a public sewer; and

(3) the impervious surface coverage does not exceed 25 percent of the lot.

(f) In a group of two or more contiguous lots of record under a common ownership, an individual lot
must be considered as a separate parcel of land for the purpose of sale or development, if it meets the
following requirements:

(1) the lot must be at least 66 percent of the dimensional standard for lot width and lot size for the
shoreland classification consistent with Minnesota Rules, chapter 6120;

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

2MINNESOTA STATUTES 2022462.357



(2) the lot must be connected to a public sewer, if available, or must be suitable for the installation of a
Type 1 sewage treatment system consistent with Minnesota Rules, chapter 7080, and local government
controls;

(3) impervious surface coverage must not exceed 25 percent of each lot; and

(4) development of the lot must be consistent with an adopted comprehensive plan.

(g) A lot subject to paragraph (f) not meeting the requirements of paragraph (f) must be combined with
the one or more contiguous lots so they equal one or more conforming lots as much as possible.

(h) Notwithstanding paragraph (f), contiguous nonconforming lots of record in shoreland areas under a
common ownership must be able to be sold or purchased individually if each lot contained a habitable
residential dwelling at the time the lots came under common ownership and the lots are suitable for, or
served by, a sewage treatment system consistent with the requirements of section 115.55 and Minnesota
Rules, chapter 7080, or connected to a public sewer.

(i) In evaluating all variances, zoning and building permit applications, or conditional use requests, the
zoning authority shall require the property owner to address, when appropriate, stormwater runoff
management, reducing impervious surfaces, increasing setback, restoration of wetlands, vegetative buffers,
sewage treatment and water supply capabilities, and other conservation-designed actions.

(j) A portion of a conforming lot may be separated from an existing parcel as long as the remainder of
the existing parcel meets the lot size and sewage treatment requirements of the zoning district for a new lot
and the newly created parcel is combined with an adjacent parcel.

Subd. 1f. Substandard structures. Notwithstanding subdivision 1e, Minnesota Rules, parts 6105.0351
to 6105.0550, may allow for the continuation and improvement of substandard structures, as defined in
Minnesota Rules, part 6105.0354, subpart 30, in the Lower Saint Croix National Scenic Riverway.

Subd. 1g. Feedlot zoning controls. (a) A municipality proposing to adopt a new feedlot zoning control
or to amend an existing feedlot zoning control must notify the Pollution Control Agency and commissioner
of agriculture at the beginning of the process, no later than the date notice is given of the first hearing
proposing to adopt or amend a zoning control purporting to address feedlots.

(b) Prior to final approval of a feedlot zoning control, the governing body of a municipality may submit
a copy of the proposed zoning control to the Pollution Control Agency and to the commissioner of agriculture
and request review, comment, and recommendations on the environmental and agricultural effects from
specific provisions in the ordinance.

(c) The agencies' response to the municipality may include:

(1) any recommendations for improvements in the ordinance; and

(2) the legal, social, economic, or scientific justification for each recommendation under clause (1).

(d) At the request of the municipality's governing body, the municipality must prepare a report on the
economic effects from specific provisions in the ordinance. Economic analysis must state whether the
ordinance will affect the local economy and describe the kinds of businesses affected and the projected
impact the proposal will have on those businesses. To assist the municipality, the commissioner of agriculture,
in cooperation with the Department of Employment and Economic Development, must develop a template
for measuring local economic effects and make it available to the municipality. The report must be submitted

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

462.357MINNESOTA STATUTES 20223



to the commissioners of employment and economic development and agriculture along with the proposed
ordinance.

(e) A local ordinance that contains a setback for new feedlots from existing residences must also provide
for a new residence setback from existing feedlots located in areas zoned agricultural at the same distances
and conditions specified in the setback for new feedlots, unless the new residence is built to replace an
existing residence. A municipality may grant a variance from this requirement under section 462.358,
subdivision 6.

Subd. 1h. Comprehensive plans in greater Minnesota; open spaces. When adopting or updating a
comprehensive plan in a municipality located within a county that is not a greater than 80 percent area, as
defined in section 103G.005, subdivision 10b, and that is located outside the metropolitan area, as defined
by section 473.121, subdivision 2, the municipality shall consider adopting goals and objectives for the
preservation of agricultural, forest, wildlife, and open space land and the minimization of development in
sensitive shoreland areas. Within three years of updating the comprehensive plan, the municipality shall
consider adopting ordinances as part of the municipality's official controls that encourage the implementation
of the goals and objectives.

Subd. 1i. Airport safety zones on zoning maps. Airport safety zones must be included on maps that
illustrate boundaries of zoning districts and that are adopted as official controls.

Subd. 2. General requirements. (a) At any time after the adoption of a land use plan for the municipality,
the planning agency, for the purpose of carrying out the policies and goals of the land use plan, may prepare
a proposed zoning ordinance and submit it to the governing body with its recommendations for adoption.

(b) Subject to the requirements of subdivisions 3, 4, and 5, the governing body may adopt and amend
a zoning ordinance by a majority vote of all its members. The adoption or amendment of any portion of a
zoning ordinance which changes all or part of the existing classification of a zoning district from residential
to either commercial or industrial requires a two-thirds majority vote of all members of the governing body.

(c) The land use plan must provide guidelines for the timing and sequence of the adoption of official
controls to ensure planned, orderly, and staged development and redevelopment consistent with the land
use plan.

Subd. 3. Public hearings. No zoning ordinance or amendment thereto shall be adopted until a public
hearing has been held thereon by the planning agency or by the governing body. A notice of the time, place
and purpose of the hearing shall be published in the official newspaper of the municipality at least ten days
prior to the day of the hearing. When an amendment involves changes in district boundaries affecting an
area of five acres or less, a similar notice shall be mailed at least ten days before the day of the hearing to
each owner of affected property and property situated wholly or partly within 350 feet of the property to
which the amendment relates. For the purpose of giving mailed notice, the person responsible for mailing
the notice may use any appropriate records to determine the names and addresses of owners. A copy of the
notice and a list of the owners and addresses to which the notice was sent shall be attested to by the responsible
person and shall be made a part of the records of the proceedings. The failure to give mailed notice to
individual property owners, or defects in the notice shall not invalidate the proceedings, provided a bona
fide attempt to comply with this subdivision has been made.

Subd. 4. Amendments. An amendment to a zoning ordinance may be initiated by the governing body,
the planning agency, or by petition of affected property owners as defined in the zoning ordinance. An
amendment not initiated by the planning agency shall be referred to the planning agency, if there is one, for
study and report and may not be acted upon by the governing body until it has received the recommendation

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

4MINNESOTA STATUTES 2022462.357



of the planning agency on the proposed amendment or until 60 days have elapsed from the date of reference
of the amendment without a report by the planning agency.

Subd. 5. Amendment; certain cities of the first class. The provisions of this subdivision apply to the
adoption or amendment of any portion of a zoning ordinance which changes all or part of the existing
classification of a zoning district from residential to either commercial or industrial of a property located in
a city of the first class, except a city of the first class in which a different process is provided through the
operation of the city's home rule charter. In a city to which this subdivision applies, amendments to a zoning
ordinance shall be made in conformance with this section but only after there shall have been filed in the
office of the city clerk a written consent of the owners of two-thirds of the several descriptions of real estate
situate within 100 feet of the total contiguous descriptions of real estate held by the same owner or any party
purchasing any such contiguous property within one year preceding the request, and after the affirmative
vote in favor thereof by a majority of the members of the governing body of any such city. The governing
body of such city may, by a two-thirds vote of its members, after hearing, adopt a new zoning ordinance
without such written consent whenever the planning commission or planning board of such city shall have
made a survey of the whole area of the city or of an area of not less than 40 acres, within which the new
ordinance or the amendments or alterations of the existing ordinance would take effect when adopted, and
shall have considered whether the number of descriptions of real estate affected by such changes and
alterations renders the obtaining of such written consent impractical, and such planning commission or
planning board shall report in writing as to whether in its opinion the proposals of the governing body in
any case are reasonably related to the overall needs of the community, to existing land use, or to a plan for
future land use, and shall have conducted a public hearing on such proposed ordinance, changes or alterations,
of which hearing published notice shall have been given in a daily newspaper of general circulation at least
once each week for three successive weeks prior to such hearing, which notice shall state the time, place
and purpose of such hearing, and shall have reported to the governing body of the city its findings and
recommendations in writing.

Subd. 6. Appeals and adjustments. Appeals to the board of appeals and adjustments may be taken by
any affected person upon compliance with any reasonable conditions imposed by the zoning ordinance. The
board of appeals and adjustments has the following powers with respect to the zoning ordinance:

(1) To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged that there is an error in any order, requirement, decision,
or determination made by an administrative officer in the enforcement of the zoning ordinance.

(2) To hear requests for variances from the requirements of the zoning ordinance including restrictions
placed on nonconformities. Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general
purposes and intent of the ordinance and when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan.
Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are practical difficulties
in complying with the zoning ordinance. "Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of
a variance, means that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted
by the zoning ordinance; the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not
created by the landowner; and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are
not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. Variances shall be granted for
earth sheltered construction as defined in section 216C.06, subdivision 14, when in harmony with the
ordinance. The board of appeals and adjustments or the governing body as the case may be, may not permit
as a variance any use that is not allowed under the zoning ordinance for property in the zone where the
affected person's land is located. The board or governing body as the case may be, may permit as a variance
the temporary use of a one family dwelling as a two family dwelling. The board or governing body as the

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

462.357MINNESOTA STATUTES 20225



case may be may impose conditions in the granting of variances. A condition must be directly related to and
must bear a rough proportionality to the impact created by the variance.

Subd. 6a. Normal residential surroundings for persons with disabilities. It is the policy of this state
that persons with disabilities should not be excluded by municipal zoning ordinances or other land use
regulations from the benefits of normal residential surroundings. For purposes of subdivisions 6a through
9, "person" has the meaning given in section 245A.02, subdivision 11.

Subd. 7. Permitted single family use. A state licensed residential facility or a housing with services
establishment registered under chapter 144D serving six or fewer persons, a licensed day care facility serving
12 or fewer persons, and a group family day care facility licensed under Minnesota Rules, parts 9502.0315
to 9502.0445 to serve 14 or fewer children shall be considered a permitted single family residential use of
property for the purposes of zoning, except that a residential facility whose primary purpose is to treat
juveniles who have violated criminal statutes relating to sex offenses or have been adjudicated delinquent
on the basis of conduct in violation of criminal statutes relating to sex offenses shall not be considered a
permitted use.

Subd. 8. Permitted multifamily use. Except as otherwise provided in subdivision 7 or in any town,
municipal or county zoning regulation as authorized by this subdivision, a state licensed residential facility
serving from 7 through 16 persons or a licensed day care facility serving from 13 through 16 persons shall
be considered a permitted multifamily residential use of property for purposes of zoning. A township,
municipal or county zoning authority may require a conditional use or special use permit in order to assure
proper maintenance and operation of a facility, provided that no conditions shall be imposed on the facility
which are more restrictive than those imposed on other conditional uses or special uses of residential property
in the same zones, unless the additional conditions are necessary to protect the health and safety of the
residents of the residential facility. Nothing herein shall be construed to exclude or prohibit residential or
day care facilities from single family zones if otherwise permitted by a local zoning regulation.

Subd. 9. Development goals and objectives. In adopting official controls after July 1, 2008, in a
municipality outside the metropolitan area, as defined by section 473.121, subdivision 2, the municipality
shall consider restricting new residential, commercial, and industrial development so that the new development
takes place in areas subject to the following goals and objectives:

(1) minimizing the fragmentation and development of agricultural, forest, wildlife, and open space lands,
including consideration of appropriate minimum lot sizes;

(2) minimizing further development in sensitive shoreland areas;

(3) minimizing development near wildlife management areas, scientific and natural areas, and nature
centers;

(4) encouraging land uses in airport safety zones that are compatible with the safe operation of the airport
and the safety of people in the vicinity of the airport;

(5) identification of areas of preference for higher density, including consideration of existing and
necessary water and wastewater services, infrastructure, other services, and to the extent feasible, encouraging
full development of areas previously zoned for nonagricultural uses;

(6) encouraging development close to places of employment, shopping centers, schools, mass transit,
and other public and private service centers;

(7) identification of areas where other developments are appropriate; and

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

6MINNESOTA STATUTES 2022462.357



(8) other goals and objectives a municipality may identify.

History: 1965 c 670 s 7; 1969 c 259 s 1; 1973 c 123 art 5 s 7; 1973 c 379 s 4; 1973 c 539 s 1; 1973 c
559 s 1,2; 1975 c 60 s 2; 1978 c 786 s 14,15; Ex1979 c 2 s 42,43; 1981 c 356 s 248; 1982 c 490 s 2; 1982
c 507 s 22; 1984 c 617 s 6-8; 1985 c 62 s 3; 1985 c 194 s 23; 1986 c 444; 1987 c 333 s 22; 1989 c 82 s 2;
1990 c 391 art 8 s 47; 1990 c 568 art 2 s 66,67; 1994 c 473 s 3; 1995 c 224 s 95; 1997 c 113 s 20; 1997 c
200 art 4 s 5; 1997 c 202 art 4 s 11; 1997 c 216 s 138; 1999 c 96 s 3,4; 1999 c 211 s 1; 2001 c 174 s 1;
2001 c 207 s 13,14; 2002 c 366 s 6; 2004 c 258 s 2; 2005 c 56 s 1; 1Sp2005 c 1 art 1 s 92; art 2 s 146; 2007
c 140 art 12 s 14; 2008 c 297 art 1 s 60,61; 2009 c 149 s 3; 2011 c 19 s 2; 1Sp2019 c 3 art 3 s 110,111

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

462.357MINNESOTA STATUTES 20227



 



 



 



LAKE MINNETONKA 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

7:00 PM, JUNE 28, 2023

DENNIS G. NELSON

135 MOUND AVE, 
TONKA BAY, MN 55331

GIDEONS BAY, 
LAKE MINNETONKA

The Lake Minnetonka Conser-
vation District (LMCD) will hold a 
public hearing to consider an ap-
plication from Dennis G. Nelson of 
135 Mound Ave, Tonka Bay to ad-
just the residential site’s dock use 
area to include a fire lane of the City 
of Tonka Bay and a New Variance.  
All interested persons will be given 
an opportunity to comment. Details 
are available at the LMCD Office, 
5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200, 
Mound, MN 55364 or by calling 
(952) 745-0789.

The meeting will be held at Way-
zata City Hall, 600 Rice Street E, 
Wayzata, MN 55391. Information 
about meeting location and meet-
ing logistics will be available on 
the LMCD website, www.lmcd.org. 
Details are available at the LMCD 
Office, 5341 Maywood Road, Suite 
200, Mound, MN 55364 or by call-
ing (952) 745-0789

Published in the
Sun Sailor 

June 8, 2023
1320246



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org 

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: June 16, 2023 

 

TO: Property Owner 

 

FROM: Thomas Tully, Environmental Administrative Technician 

SUBJECT:    Public Hearing Notice- Variance 135 Mound Avenue, Tonka Bay, Gideons Bay 

 

You are receiving this notice since Hennepin County property records indicate you own or reside 

upon property within 350 feet of a site being considered for a variance for an adjusted dock use 

area including side setback adjustments. The Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) 

will hold a public hearing to consider the variance application. The site is located at 135 Mound 

Avenue in Tonka Bay and has shoreline on Gideons Bay. The applicants are Dennis G. Nelson 

and Barbra Franta of 135 Mound Avenue, Tonka Bay, 55331. 

 

The applicant proposes to adjust the dock use area for the site as well as the setbacks to 

include use of a City of Tonka Bay fire lane adjacent to the property. All interested persons will 

be given an opportunity to comment. An aerial image and proposed site plan are enclosed for 

your reference. 

 

Public Hearing Information 

A public hearing will be held at 7:00 PM, June 28, 2023. The items detailed above will be 

reviewed and considered for approval. All interested persons will be given an opportunity to 

comment. Alternatively, please submit comments in writing to the LMCD (address below) or by 

emailing staff at lmcd@lmcd.org. 

 

Those desiring to participate in the hearing may also email the Environmental Administrative 

Technician at ttully@lmcd.org , or to receive more information. The meeting place is Wayzata 

City Hall, 600 Rice Street, Wayzata, MN 55391. Information about meeting logistics will be 

available on the LMCD website, www.lmcd.org. 
 

Details are available at the LMCD Office, 5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200, Mound, MN 55364 

or by calling (952) 745-0789. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.lmcd.org/
mailto:lmcd@lmcd.org
lmcd@lmcd.org
http://www.lmcd.org/




135 MOUND AVENUE 
GIDEONS, TONKA BAY

VARIANCE APPLICATION
PUBLIC HEARING

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District

Board Meeting

June 28, 2023

Presented by: Thomas Tully, Environmental Administrative Technician 

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience”



OVERVIEW 

 Board Action

 History

 Background

 Agency and Public Comments

 Staff Recommendation 

 Public Hearing

 Q & A

June 28, 2023 2



BOARD ACTION

 Consideration of Variance 

 Options
 Approve
 I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and 

Order approving the variance application from Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra 
Franta for the property located at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay for final 
approval at the July 12, 2023 LMCD Board meeting <subject to the following 
conditions>… 

 Deny
 I make a motion to direct LMCD legal counsel to prepare Findings of Fact and 

Order denying the variance application from Dennis G. Nelson and Barbra 

Franta for the property located at 135 Mound Avenue in Tonka Bay for a final 

vote at the July 12, 2023, LMCD Board meeting based on… 

3June 28, 2023



135 MOUND AVENUE, TONKA BAY

June 28, 2023 4For illustrative purposes only



135 MOUND AVENUE, TONKA BAY

June 28, 2023 5For illustrative purposes only



RECENT HISTORY HIGHLIGHT

 These sites have had persistent ongoing issues. The following is a 
brief summary of recent communications , addressed concern 
regarding dock structure and watercraft storage for these sites.

 On July 22, 2022, staff met with City of Tonka Bay staff, City legal 
counsel, and Applicant regarding options for fire lane use and dock 
configuration and placement. 

 A public hearing for the applicant’s proposals was originally held on 
October 26, 2022 and was brought back for final approval at a LMCD 
Board meeting on November 9, 2022.

 A new application for the property located at 135 Mound Ave was 
submitted to the LMCD on April 26, 2023. 

 The Applicant has requested an amendment to the original Findings 
of Facts, this would result in a new Variance being issued. The 
Applicant has concerns with the current language found in the 
Findings of Fact. 

June 28, 2023 6



BACKGROUND

 Applicant’s property has approximately 38 feet of 
929.4  feet OHW shoreline located on Gideons Bay. 
Parcel located next to a City fire lane with 
approximately 58 feet of 929.4 feet OHW shoreline. 
The current variance allows the Applicant to use the 
total length of fire lane shoreline toward dock length 
and side setbacks.

 City of Tonka Bay Resolution 22-38 formally supported 
the original proposed Variance sharing the City of 
Tonka Bay Fire Lane.

 Applicant has concerns with current language found in 
Findings of fact Order 6. Sub. (G).

June 28, 2023 7



APPROVED SITE PLAN 1

June 28, 2023 8



APPROVED SITE PLAN 1 EXCERPT

June 28, 2023 9



APPROVED SITE PLAN 2

June 28, 2023 10



APPROVED SITE PLAN 2 EXCERPT

June 28, 2023 11



CURRENT WORDING (ORDER 6 SUB. (G))

June 28, 2023 12

Current Wording: 

“If the City ever elects to more fully exercise its riparian rights associated 

with the fire lane and withdraws its consent because it determines the 

Applicant’ dock interferes with its proposed use, the Applicant will be 

required to yield to the superior riparian rights held by the public in the 

authorized dock use area of the fire lane. McLafferty v. St. Aubin, 500 

N.W.2d 165, 168 (Minn. App. 1993). If consent is ever withdrawn, the 

Applicant, or any future owner, is encouraged to work with the City to 

identify a solution that will work for both parties and to submit an 

application seeking whatever approvals from the LMCD that may be 

required to facilitate the agreed upon plan”.



APPLICANTS PROPOSED WORDING (ORDER 6 SUB. (G))

June 28, 2023 13

Applicants Request: 

“If the City ever elects to more fully exercise its riparian rights associated 

with the fire lane and withdraws its consent (because it determines the 

Applicant’ dock may interferes with its proposed riparian uses), the 

Applicant may be required to modify his dock configuration to reasonably 

share riparian rights in accordance with Minnesota riparian rights laws and 

court decisions as they exists at the time of such exercise by the City. If 

consent is ever withdrawn, the Applicant or any future property owner is 

encouraged to work with the City to identify a solution that will work for 

both parties and to submit an application seeking whatever approvals from 

the LMCD that may be required to facilitate the agreed upon plan.”



VARIANCE STANDARDS

1. Has applicant sufficiently demonstrated practical difficulties exist that each of 
following are true?

1. Strict application of code prohibits property owner from using Lake in reasonable 
manner that is otherwise permitted by the code.

2. Granting variance is within spirit and intent of code.
3. Plight of property owner is due to circumstances:

1. Unique to property;
2. Not created by property owner; and
3. Not based solely on economic considerations.

4. Granting  variance does not alter essential character of the area.

2. Is applicant proposing a use not allowed under the code?

3. Would variance, if granted and with conditions imposed, adversely affect:
1. Purpose of Code?
2. Public health, safety, and welfare?
3. Reasonable access to or use of the Lake by public or riparian owners?

June 28, 2023 14



PUBLIC / REVIEW AGENCY COMMENTS

 Agency Review of Application / Comments (General Permit)
 No comments received from the MN DNR or the MCWD. 

 No formal decision regarding the application was made by 
the City of Tonka Bay, although there was some discussion 
at the June 27, Council Meeting. 

 Public Comments

 Residents at 85 Mound Ave submitted a comment in strong 
support of the Applicants request.

June 28, 2023 15



ON SITE REVIEW

June 28, 2023 16



ON SITE REVIEW

June 28, 2023 17



ON SITE REVIEW

June 28, 2023 18



ON SITE REVIEW

June 28, 2023 19



RECOMMENDATION

 The Staffs approach has been to work with both the Applicant and the 

City of Tonka Bay to find a favorable solution to an ongoing problem 

regarding responsible sharing of a City of Tonka Bay Fire Lane. The City 

of Tonka Bay, through resolution 22-38 formally supported the original 

proposed Variance sharing the City of Tonka Bay Fire Lane. LMCD Staff 

and Legal Council at the time of the approval of original Variance noted 

the superior riparian rights held by the public, and the Applicants need 

to submit and seek a new solution with the City if ever it was 

determined that the dock structure at 135 Mound Ave interfered with 

the Fire Lanes proposed use. 

 Therefore, LMCD staff recommends that the Board deny the proposed 

Variance due to  protecting the nature of which the City of Tonka Bay 

Fire Lane is meant to serve.

June 28, 2023 20



PUBLIC HEARING

 Public Hearing Requirements 
 Posted in official newspaper on June 8, 2023 (Sun 

Sailor), and also on June 11 2023 (Laker Pioneer)

 Owners of properties within 350 feet notified, 10-day 
notice sent June 15, 2022

 Posted online with meeting packet

 Opportunity for interested individuals to present 
their views to Board for consideration

 Only items under the LMCD Code and Board 
authority may be considered as part of any 
Approve or Deny decision

June 28, 2023 21



QUESTIONS?

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience”

June 28, 2023 22



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

DATE: June 28, 2023 (Prepared June 20, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Jim Brimeyer, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Administrative Fines 

ACTION_____________________________________________________________________ 

Board consideration of the Administrative Fine Process. 

The following motions are offered depending on whether the Board wishes to approve or deny 

the request: 

Approval 

I make a motion to approve the Administrative Fine Process <with the following 

conditions/exceptions…> 

Denial 

I make a motion to deny the Administrative Fine Process <based on the following 

conditions…> 

BACKGROUND_______________________________________________________________ 

The Benefits: The only option available to many public agencies is criminal prosecution and 

penalties.  The criminal process does not always regard code violations as being important resulting 

in long delays in resolution. Citizens resent being labeled as criminals for violations of 

administrative regulations. The burden of proof and the potential for heavy fines or incarceration 

are not usually appropriate for many administrative violations. The criminal process is too 

expensive to be useful for violations of administrative regulations. The Administrative Fine process 

has proven to be more effective at encouraging compliance, is more efficient and less burdensome.   

The Concept: Once a violation is registered and verified, the person committing the violation is sent a 

notice of the violation, what needs to happen to correct the violation and a reasonable time (depending 

upon the nature of the violation) in which to make corrections. If this does not happen within the 

timeframe, either imposed or negotiated, the initial fine per day is $200.00 for a period of thirty days; 

a continuing, or subsequent violation is $300.00 per day for thirty days and a third continuing, or 

subsequent, violations is $500.00 per day for thirty days.  The party cited can request, in writing, an 

appeal to the governing board. If this appeal is not filed within ten days of the notice, this constitutes 

an admission of guilt of the violation and appeal rights are waived.  

The maximum fine levied does not exceed $25,000.00. 

ITEM 13A



Administrative Fines 

LMCD Board Meeting 

June 28, 2023 

 
If the fine is not paid, the governing body can place a lien on the property which can be collected in the 

same manner as taxes. Also, the violation could result in the revocation of a license, permit or other 

approval required by code and possible ineligibility to receive a license or a permit. Ultimately, the violator 

could face a criminal charge and a sentence of up to ninety (90) days in jail. 

RECOMMENDATION_________________________________________________________ 

 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES_____________________________________________________ 

X 
Operational 

Effectiveness 
 

Clear & Timely 

Communications 
X 

Effective 

Governance 
X 

Lake 

Protection 
 Other 

 

ATTACHMENT_______________________________________________________________ 

• Draft Ordinance Regarding Administrative Fines 

• Draft Letter of Violation 

 



AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND 

CIVIL  PENALTIES  FOR    VIOLATION   OF  DISTRICT ORDINANCES 

PART I. 

Purpose 

Section 1.01. The Board of Directors finds that there is a need for educating the 

public and for alternative methods of enforcing the District ordinances. There are 

certain negative consequences for both the District and the accused when criminal 

fines and penalties are the only available enforcement mechanism. Criminal law 

enforcement personnel and the criminal enforcement process do not always regard 

District ordinance violations as having sufficient priority. The delay inherent in that 

system does not ensure prompt resolution. Reluctance to label citizens as criminals 

for violations of ordinances may discourage enforcement. The higher burden of 

proof and the potential of incarceration do not appear appropriate for 

administrative enforcement. Accordingly, the Board finds that the use of 

administrative citations and the imposition of civil penalties is a legitimate and 

necessary alternative method of enforcement. This method of enforcement is in 

addition to any other legal remedy that may be pursued for District ordinance 

violations. The District thus enacts this ordinance in order to fully execute its duties 

as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Sections 1038.651 to 1038.691. 

PART II. 

General Provisions 

Section 2.01. Administrative offense. A violation of a provision of the District 

ordinances is an administrative offense that may be subject to an administrative 

citation and civil penalties. Each day a violation exists constitutes a separate offense. 

Section 2.02. Civil penalty. An administrative offense may be subject to a civil 

penalty of $200.00 per day for the first thirty (30) days for any continuing, or 

subsequent violation; $300.00 for the next thirty (30) days for any continuing, or 

subsequent, violation; and $500.00 per day for the next thirty (30) days for any 

continuing, or subsequent violation, depending upon the duration of the violation. 

Total fines will not exceed a total of $25,000.00, plus any costs, including 

restitution or abatement, as provided herein. 

Section 2.03. Amount of civil penalty. The Board of Directors must adopt by 

resolution a schedule of civil penalties for offenses initiated by administrative 

citation. The Board of Directors is not bound by that schedule when a matter is 

appealed to it for administrative review. 

ITEM 13A1



 

 

Section 2.04. Procedures. The Board of Directors must appoint one or more 

education and enforcement officers and adopt procedures to administer the 

administrative citation program. 

 

 

Section 2.05. Enforcement authority. The Board of Directors must authorize by 

resolution the appointment of one or more education and enforcement officers and 

any persons other than sworn peace officers who shall enforce District ordinances 

by means of administrative citation. 

 

Part III. 

 

Administrative Citation 

 

Section 3.01. Citation issuance. A person authorized to enforce provisions of the 

District ordinances may issue an administrative citation upon probable cause that a 

code violation has occurred. The citation must be issued in person or by mail to the 

person alleged to be responsible for the violation or may be attached to the 

watercraft or vehicle in the case of a watercraft or vehicle offense. The citation must 

state the date, time, and nature of the offense, the name of the authorized 

enforcement person issuing the citation, the amount of the scheduled civil penalty, 

and the manner for paying the civil penalty or appealing the citation. 

 

Section 3.02. Responsibility of the accused. The person responsible for the violation 

must either pay the scheduled civil penalty or request a hearing within ten days after 

personal service of the citation or 13 days after mailed service of the citation. 

Payment of the civil penalty constitutes admission of the administrative violation. A 

late payment fee of 10 percent of the scheduled civil penalty amount may be 

imposed under Section 7.04. Admission of an administrative violation shall not be 

admission to any crime. 

 

Section 3.03. Criminal option. Participation by any charged person in these 

administrative enforcement proceedings is voluntary. Any charged person may 

withdraw from these proceedings at any stage and elect to have the matter treated 

as a criminal proceeding by so informing the District or its representatives. The 

administrative citation will be withdrawn and a criminal citation or complaint 

issued for the same offense. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

                         Part IV. 

 

Administrative Hearing 

 

Section 4.01. Hearing officer. The Board of Directors will periodically appoint a 

hearing officer to hear and determine a matter for which a hearing is requested. The 

accused will have the right to request no later than five days before the date of the 

hearing that the assigned hearing officer be removed from the case. One request for 

each case will be granted automatically by the Board. A subsequent request must be 

directed to the assigned hearing officer who will decide whether he or she has reason 

to withdraw. If the hearing officer withdraws, the District Staff will assign another 

hearing officer. The hearing officer is not a judicial officer but is a public officer as 

defined by Minn Stat.,  #609.41 

 

Section 4.02. Orders. Upon the hearing officer's own initiative or upon written 

request of an interested party demonstrating the need, the officer may issue an 

administrative order served in the manner for serving subpoenas in a civil action for 

the attendance of a witness or the production of books, papers, records or other 

documents that are material to the matter being heard. The party requesting the order 

is responsible for serving the order in the manner provided for civil actions and for 

paying the fees and expenses of a witness. A person served with an order may file an 

objection with the hearing officer promptly but no later than the time specified in the 

order for compliance. The hearing officer may cancel or modify the order if it is 

unreasonable or oppressive. A person who, without just cause, fails, or refuses to 

attend and testify or to produce the required documents in obedience to such an order 

may be subject to such penalties, including default, as the hearing officer may deem 

fair under the circumstances. 

Alternatively, the party requesting the order may seek an order from district court 

directing compliance. 

 

Section 4.03. Notice. Notice of the hearing must be served in person or by mail on 

the person responsible for the violation at least 10 days in advance unless a shorter 

time is accepted by all parties. 

 

Section 4.04. Evidence. At the hearing, the parties will have the opportunity to 

present testimony and question any witnesses, but strict rules of evidence will not 

apply. The hearing officer must tape record the hearing and receive testimony and 

exhibits. The officer must receive and give weight to evidence, including hearsay 

evidence, that possesses probative value commonly accepted by reasonable and 

prudent people in the conduct of their affairs. In a case of alleged pollution, alleged 

safety or sanitation violations, or alleged detriment to the quality of waters or 

wildlife, evidence of an improper or prohibited action may be considered sufficient 

proof without demonstrating that the action resulted in actual harm.



 

 

 

Section 4.05. Determination. The hearing officer has the authority to determine  that a 

violation occurred; to dismiss a citation; to impose the scheduled civil penalty; to 

reduce, stay, or waive a scheduled civil penalty either unconditionally or upon 

compliance with appropriate conditions; to refer the matter to the Board for suspension 

or revocation of a District-issued license; to order the accused person to cease and desist 

from conduct in violation; to order the performance remedial measures; and to impose 

or recover costs, including restitution and abatement of a nuisance or hazardous 

condition, as  may be incurred  by the  District and other parties in conducting these 

proceedings and in undertaking cleanup or remedial measures. When imposing a 

penalty for a violation, the hearing officer may consider any or all of the following 

factors: 

 

(a) the duration of the violation; 

(b) the frequency or reoccurrence of the violation; 

(c) the seriousness of the violation; 

(d) the history of the violation; 

(e) subsequent remedial measures taken by the violator after issuance of the citation; 

(f) the good faith effort by the violator to comply; 

(g) the economic impact of the penalty on the violator; 

(h) the impact of the violation upon the community; 

(i)  the impact of the violation upon the environment of the lake, shoreland, or watershed;  

(j)  any other factors appropriate to a just result. 

 

Section 4.06. Limited appeal Except for matters subject to administrative review 

under Part V, the decision of the hearing officer is final without any further right of 

administrative appeal. In a matter subject to administrative review under Part V, the 

hearing officer's decision may be appealed to the Board of Directors by submitting a 

request in writing to the District staff within 10 days after the hearing officer's 

decision. 

 

Section 4.07. Failure to attend hearing. When the accused fails without good cause 

to attend the hearing, the hearing officer will either reissue the civil citation or refer 

the matter for criminal prosecution.  Failure to appear a second time constitutes 

withdrawal from these administrative proceedings and the hearing officer will refer 

the matter for criminal prosecution. Examples of "good cause" are: death or 

incapacitating illness of the accused or a family member; a court order requiring the 

accused to appear for another hearing at the same time; and lack of proper service of 

the citation or notice of the hearing. "Good cause" does not include: forgetfulness 

and intentional delay. 

 

       

 

 

 



 

 

PART V. 

 

Administrative Review 

 

Section 5.01. Appeal to the Board. The hearing officer's decision in any of the 

following matters may be appealed by a party in writing to the Board of Directors 

for administrative review: 

 
(a) an alleged failure to obtain a permit, license, or other approval from the Board of 

Directors as required by an ordinance; 

(b) an alleged violation of a permit, license, other approval, or the conditions 

attached to the permit, license, or approval, that was granted by the Board of 

Directors; and/or 

(c) an alleged violation of regulations governing a person or entity who has received a 

license granted by the Board of Directors. 

 

Section 5.02. Review by the Board. The review will be conducted by the Board of 

directors after notice served in person or by mail at least 10 days in advance. The 

Board may request parties to present oral or written arguments regarding the 

hearing officer's decision. 

 

 

 Section 5.03. Board consideration. The Board of Directors must consider the 

record, the hearing officer's decision, and any additional arguments before 

making a determination. The Board is not bound by the hearing officer's 

decision, but may adopt all or part of the officer's decision. The Board's decision 

must be in writing. 

 

Section 5.04. Board finding, penalty, and order. If the Board makes a finding of a 

violation, it may impose a civil penalty not exceeding $700.00 per day per violation 

and may consider any or all of the factors contained in Section 4.0S(a) through (j). 

The Board may also reduce, stay, or waive a civil penalty unconditionally or based 

on reasonable and appropriate conditions. In addition to the civil penalty, the Board 

may impose or recover costs, including restitution and abatement of a nuisance or 

hazardous condition, as may be incurred by the District and other parties in 

conducting these proceedings and in undertaking cleanup or remedial measures. 

Further, the Board may order the performance of remedial measures and may order 

the accused person to cease and desist from conduct in violation. 

 

Section 5.05. License revocation or suspension. In addition to imposing a civil 

penalty, the Board may suspend or revoke a District-issued license, permit, or other 

approval associated with the violation. The Board will suspend or revoke a license 

when, in its judgment, such action will serve to cease, abate, clean up, or remediate a 

violation. 

 

       

 



 

 

 

Part VI. 

Judicial Review 

Section 6.01. Judicial review. An aggrieved party may obtain judicial review of the 

decision of the hearing officer or the Board of Directors by proceeding under a writ 

of certiorari or other means authorized by law. At any time prior to the hearing 

herein, an aggrieved party may require the issuance of a criminal citation or 

complaint in lieu of an administrative citation. 

 

Part VII. 

Recovery of Civil Penalties 

Section 7.01. Failure to pay penalty. If a civil penalty is not paid within the time 

specified, it will constitute a personal obligation of the violator. 

 

Section 7.02. Property lien. Nothing in this provision precludes the District from 

seeking and obtaining a lien on the property of the violator to recover the civil 

penalty or costs incurred by the District or other parties, including restitution and 

abatement of a nuisance or hazardous condition, in undertaking cleanup or remedial 

measures. 

 

Section 7.03. Personal obligation. A personal obligation may be collected by 

appropriate legal means. 

 

Section 7.04. Late fee. A late payment fee of 10 percent of the civil penalty shall be 

assessed for each 30-day period, or part thereof, that the civil penalty remains unpaid 

after the due date. 

 

Section 7.05. Revocation of license. Failure to pay a civil penalty is grounds for 

suspension or revocation of a license related to the violation. 

 

 

Part VIII. 

Criminal Prosecution 

8.01. Failure to pay penalty. Failure to pay a civil penalty within 30 days after it was 

imposed, or such other time as may be established by the hearing officer or the 

Board of Directors, may be deemed by the hearing officer or the Board to constitute 

withdrawal from these administrative proceedings and the District may prosecute 

the offense as a criminal matter. 

 

8.02. Limit to prosecution. After final adjudication under the administrative penalty 



 

 

procedure herein, the District may not prosecute a criminal violation in district 

court based on the same set of facts. This does not preclude the District from 

pursuing a criminal conviction for a violation of the same provision based on a 

different set of facts. A different date of violation will constitute a different set of 

facts. 

 



 LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
5341 MAYWOOD ROAD, SUITE 200  •  MOUND, MINNESOTA 55364  •  PH: (952) 745-0789  

www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org 

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

To: 

Date: 

RE: Notice of Violation - Location of Dock 

We have discussed with you on several occasions the requirement for you to obtain a permit for your 
dock installation. This permit is required per Chapter ______of LMCD Code. Dock permit applications 
are subject to review and approval by the LMCD staff and eventually the Board. The process and the 
application are as follows:___________. 

You are hereby notified that you are in violation of Chapter _____ of the LMCD  Code for failure to 
apply for and obtain a permit for your dock. If you do not either (i)  remove the dock or (ii) deliver to 
LMCD offices a complete application for a Dock  permit (including payment of the application fee) 
within 15 days from the date of  this notice, an administrative citation will be issued pursuant to 
Section ____  Chapter ____ of the LMCD Code. The initial fine is $200.00 per day for thirty days. 

A second continuing, or subsequent, violation is $300.00 per day for thirty days and a third 
continuing, all subsequent, violations are $500.00 per day. Each day a violation continues 
constitutes a separate and additional violation. The maximum fine is a total of $25,000.00. 

After issuance of an administrative citation, you have 10 days to pay the fine or deliver a written 
request for appeal of the citation and fine to the LMCD offices. Failure to file an appeal within 10 
days of service of the citation constitutes an admission of the violation and a waiver of your right to 
appeal.   

If the administrative fine is not paid within the time specified, the consequences include: 

• Imposition of a lien on the real property at this location and collected in the
same manner as taxes;

• A personal obligation of the person committing the violation;

• Ineligibility to receive any license, permit or other approval required by code;

• Potential suspension or revocation of an existing license or permit;

• A potential for criminal prosecution with up to a ninety (90) day jail sentence

Additional fees and late charges 
Sec. ____ of the LMCD Code contains a more complete description of the administrative 
citation, fine, and appeal and administrative hearing processes.  

The LMCD Code can be found on the LMCD web site: www.lmcd.org 

ITEM 13A2



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

DATE: June 28, 2023 (Prepared June 20, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Jim Brimeyer, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Variance Fees, Escrow, and Recording 

ACTION_____________________________________________________________________ 

Board consideration of the Administrative Fine Process. The following motions are offered 

depending on whether the Board wishes to approve or deny the request: 

Approval 

I make a motion to approve the Administrative Fine Process <with the following 

conditions/exceptions…> 

Denial 

I make a motion to deny the Administrative Fine Process <based on the following 

conditions…> 

BACKGROUND_______________________________________________________________ 
WE have had considerable discussion about the fees for variances and do the fees currently 

cover the costs of staff time and outside consultants (legal, engineering, surveys). A survey of 

the lake communities and a few other locations indicate that most of the cities have a variance 

fee, and escrow fee and the variance once granted is recorded on the title of record for the 

property. 

RECOMMENDATION_________________________________________________________ 

Staff recommend an initial fee of $750.00 (non-refundable) and an escrow in the amount 

of $1,500.00. Unused amounts would be refunded. Any additional amounts needed for 

outside consultants would be required in order to continue the variance process. 

All variances granted would be recorded by our legal counsel and the fees paid from the 

escrow fund. 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES_____________________________________________________ 

X 
Operational 

Effectiveness 
 

Clear & Timely 

Communications 
X 

Effective 

Governance 
X 

Lake 

Protection 
Other 

ATTACHMENT_______________________________________________________________ 

N/A 

ITEM 13B



ITEM 14A













www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

DATE: June 28, 2023 (Prepared June 20, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Jim Brimeyer, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: LMCD Office Summer Hours 

ACTION_____________________________________________________________________ 

Board consideration of new Summer Hours as of July 3, 2023. The LMCD Office Hours will be 

Monday through Thursday, 7:30am to 5:00pm., and Fridays from 8:00am to 11:30am. 

The following motions are offered depending on whether the Board wishes to approve or deny 

the request: 

Approval 

I make a motion to approve the new Summer Hours effective July 3, 2023, Monday 

through Thursday 7:30am to 5:00pm, and Fridays from 8:00am to 11:30am. <with the 

following conditions/exceptions…> 

Denial 

I make a motion to deny the new Summer Hours <based on the following conditions…> 

BACKGROUND_______________________________________________________________

Over the past few months I have noticed a few things – many of the “lake communities” have 

summer hours from Memorial Day to Labor Day. Also, once we get an agenda “out the door” on 

Thursdays, Fridays can be a “bit slow”. 

RECOMMENDATION_________________________________________________________ 

Staff is advising the Board to approve the new Summer Hours effective July 1, 2023, Monday 

through Thursday 7:30am to 5:00pm, and Fridays 8:00am to 11:30am. 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES_____________________________________________________ 

X 
Operational 

Effectiveness 

Clear & Timely 

Communications 

Effective 

Governance 

Lake 

Protection 
Other 

ATTACHMENT_______________________________________________________________ 

• N/A

ITEM 15A



www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

DATE: June 28, 2023 (Prepared June 20, 2023) 

TO: LMCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Jim Brimeyer, Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Staff Items - Compensation 

ACTION_____________________________________________________________________ 

Board consideration of increasing staff compensation 

The following motions are offered depending on whether the Board wishes to approve or deny 

the request: 

Approval 

I make a motion to approve increasing staff compensation <with the following 

conditions/exceptions…> 

Denial 

I make a motion to deny increasing staff compensation based on the following 

conditions… 

BACKGROUND_______________________________________________________________

I have done some thinking about how LMCD staff is compensated. I have observed the quality 

and effort that our staff makes to make sure we are providing a high level of service to the board 

and our customers. I am more than satisfied. I also am of the opinion that hourly rates vs an 

annual salary do not reflect the value that we should have for our employees.  

This item has been discussed by the Officers Working Group and meets their approval. 

RECOMMENDATION_________________________________________________________ 

Effective retroactively to June 1, 2023, I am recommending the following: 

Current  Proposed:  

Tammy $23.47 per hour   $30.00 per hour to enhance high five under PERA 

Tom $31.48 per hour + OT X 1.5* $35.00 per hour + OT X 1.5 

Maisyn $22.05 per hour + OT X 1.5** $27.50 per hour + OT X 1.5 

Raina $23.00 per hour  $25.00 per hour at six months (or annual salary) 

ITEM 15B



Staff Items - Compensation 

LMCD Board Meeting 

June 28, 2023 

www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org 

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

 

 

Effective September 1, 2023 

 

Tammy - part time at $30.00 per hour 

 

Tom – potential annual salary range $70,000 - $80,000 (TBD) – no overtime 

 

Maisyn – potential annual salary range $50,000 - $60,000(TBD) – no overtime 

 

Raina – potential annual salary range – TBD – no overtime 

 

*$74,000 (current earnings) 

**$47,000 (current earnings) 

 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES_____________________________________________________ 

X 
Operational 

Effectiveness 
 

Clear & Timely 

Communications 
 

Effective 

Governance 
 

Lake 

Protection 
 Other 

 

 


	Item 0 20230628 Agenda FINAL
	1 WS LMCD Article 7 Watercraft for Hire
	2 WS LMCD High Performing Board Documentation_Session 2
	Item 6 LMCD Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT 20230614
	Item 7A Audit of Vouchers 06162023 to 06302023
	Item 7B DRAFT LMCD RESOLUTION 254 Save the Lake Contribution 20230628
	Item 7B Resolutions #254 Attachment 1 20230614
	Item 9A Bowfishing Tournament Presentation from Home Town Heroes Outdoors
	Item 9B Special Event Presentation from Project Got Your Back
	Item 10A Variance for 135 Mound Ave in the City of Tonka Bay
	0 - Public Hearing Board Memo_ v3 20230628
	1 - Public Hearing Board Memo_135 Mound Ave_202210 v2
	2 - 11_9_22 Final_Approved_135Mound_Avenue Finding of Facts and Order
	DOCSOPEN-#835829-v4-Variance_for_135_Mound_Avenue Final
	Approved Site Plan
	5- Current Site Plan Option 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SURV (17X22) HORIZ



	3- Location Map for 135 Mound Ave
	4 - Current Site Plan_Option 1
	5- Current Site Plan Option 2
	Sheets and Views
	SURV (17X22) HORIZ


	6. Application Materials
	1. Variance-Application- 135 Mound Ave - Spring 2023
	VARIANCE APPLICATION
	LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	________________________________   ______________________________    ______________________                   Name                                                       Title       Date

	Application Fee (Non-refundable)
	Return to:
	Lake Minnetonka Conservation District
	5341 Maywood Road, Suite 200
	Mound, MN  55364

	2. 11_9_22 Final_Approved_135Mound_Avenue Finding of Facts and Order
	DOCSOPEN-#835829-v4-Variance_for_135_Mound_Avenue Final
	Approved Site Plan
	5- Current Site Plan Option 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SURV (17X22) HORIZ



	A3 Hennepin Plat map large
	A4 Hennepin Plat map small
	A7 MailingList in mailing label format
	Attachment #1 Variance application Attachment for practical difficulties 2023
	Attachment #2 Tonka Bay Resolution_Approval_of_Dock_Placement
	Attachment #3 McLafferty v St Aubin
	Attachment #4 ITEM_8A_-_4_435_LAKEVIEW_PROPOSED_SITE_PLAN
	Attachment #5 city 435 dock approve minutes
	Dennis Nelson Public Comments at 12_14_22 Board meeting
	MnStat 462_357 limits on conditions to variances
	Original dock pics
	Pic from Lower walkout
	pic from middle of firelane at shore

	7 - Legal Notice Sun Sailor
	8 - Public Hearing Notice_350ft Mailing_135 Mound Ave_20221013
	9 - Attachment #2 Tonka Bay Resolution_Approval_of_Dock_Placement

	Item 13A Memo Administrative Fines 20230628
	Item 13A1 An Ordinance Adm fines LMCD DRAFT 20230628
	Item 13A2 LMCD Notice of Violation - Location of Dock DRAFT 20230628
	Item 13B Memo Variance Fees Escrow Recording 20230628
	Item 14A May I and E and Balance Sheet Reports
	SKM_C550i23062211130
	SKM_C550i23062211131
	SKM_C550i23062211132

	Item 15A Memo Staff Summer Hours 20230628
	Item 15B Memo Staff Items - Compensation 20230628
	135 Mound Ave  PP Board 2023.pdf
	Slide 1: 135 Mound Avenue  Gideons, Tonka Bay Variance application Public Hearing
	Slide 2: Overview 
	Slide 3: Board action
	Slide 4: 135 MOUND AVENUE, TONKA BAY
	Slide 5: 135 MOUND AVENUE, TONKA BAY
	Slide 6: Recent History Highlight
	Slide 7: Background
	Slide 8: Approved SITE PLAN 1
	Slide 9: Approved SITE PLAN 1 EXCERPT
	Slide 10: Approved SITE PLAN 2
	Slide 11: Approved SITE PLAN 2 EXCERPT
	Slide 12: Current Wording (Order 6 Sub. (g))
	Slide 13: Applicants Proposed Wording (Order 6 Sub. (g))
	Slide 14: Variance Standards
	Slide 15: Public / Review agency comments
	Slide 16: On Site review
	Slide 17: On Site review
	Slide 18: On Site review
	Slide 19: On Site review
	Slide 20: Recommendation
	Slide 21: Public hearing
	Slide 22: Questions?


	Applicant: Dennis G. Nelson
	Title Owner Authorized Agent etc: Owner
	Address: 135 Mound Ave.
	City State Zip: Tonka Bay, MN 55331
	Phone: 612-703-4375
	Email: dg99nelson@mchsi.com
	Property Owner if different from applicant: Dennis G. Nelson & Barbara A. Franta
	Relationship to Property Owner: Self and Spouse
	Address_2: Same
	City State Zip_2: Same
	Email_2: Same
	Phone 1: Same
	Site Address: 135 Mound Ave., Tonka Bay, MN 55331. PID No. 28-117-23 43 0054
	North or West 1: Shawn and Kathleen Mallery, 145 Mound Ave., Tonka Bay, MN 55331
	North or West 2: Also Includes City of Tonka Bay easement for the Woodlawn firelane
	South or East 1: Tom and Felicia Lindquist, 125 Mound Ave., Tonka Bay, MN 55331
	South or East 2: 
	Other affected parties 1: City of Tonka Bay as previously indicated
	Other affected parties 2: 
	Type of Variance: Variance from Prescribed Authorized Dock Usage Area
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 2: This Variance request is basically the same as the one granted November 9, 2022 except the 
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 3: applicant is asking that the condition imposed in paragraph 6.g. of this approved variance be
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 4: changed as it is not proportional (Mn Statute 462.357 Subd 6) to the simple confirmation that my dock placement is reasonable.
	State practical difficulties causing the variance to be required 5: See Attachment #1 for Practical Difficulties discussion and suggested language change to paragraph 6.g.
	Name: 
	Title: 
	Date: 
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box7: Yes
	Check Box8: Yes


